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23,595,398.76 21.96
14,881,455.42 13.85
14,057,903.46 13.09
12,214,633.19 11.37
9,791,686.47 9.11
9,356,850.00 8.71
4,928,080.66 4.59
4,348,308.48 4.05
3,771,080.13 3.51
3,641,483.79 3.39
2,215,587.31 2.06
1,258,715.63 1.17
104,061,183.30 96.86
3,367,961.69 3.14
107,429,144.99
100.00
11,579,787,538
2019
SSE PLC V/R 2077
4.75 9,110,000 97.91| 8,919,670.43|100.25| 9,132,775.00| 8.50
09/16/77 16
BAYER AG V/R 2075
2.375 7,966,000 111.36| 8,871,073.86|113.72| 9,059,161.81 8.43
04/02/75/EUR/
NGG FINANCE V/R 2073
5.625 6,245,000 | 156.96 | 9,802,442.19|137.72| 8,600,892.74| 8.01
06/18/73/GBP/ 18
ENTERPRISE 2078
PRODUC V/R 5.375 15 5,725,000 100| 5,725,000.00 93| 5,324,250.00| 4.96
02/15/78
TELEFONICA EUR 2168
4.061 4,600,000 118.50| 5,451,229.91|115.16| 5,297,412.86| 4.93
V/R /PERP//EUR/
VODAFONE GRO V/R 2079
3.1 4,077,000 | 117.34| 4,784,003.41| 117.03| 4,771,495.55| 4.44
01/03/79/EUR/
TRANSCANADA 2077
TRUST V/R 5.3 15 4,870,000 102.35| 4,984,574.43| 96.04| 4,677,135.83| 4.35
03/15/77
ENBRIDGE INC V/R 2077
5.5 4,809,000 | 101.14| 4,863,765.69| 96.70| 4,650,110.64| 4.33
07/15/77 15
ENBW V/R 2076
3.625 3,565,000 120.17 | 4,284,009.97 | 119.71| 4,267,806.65| 3.97
04/02/76/EUR/
VOLKSWAGEN INT 2167
10 2.7 3,600,000| 116.23 | 4,184,302.49|115.42| 4,155,046.97 3.87
V/R /PERP//EUR/ 12 14
NEXTERA ENERGY 2077
11 4.8 4,290,000 | 100.35| 4,304,806.93 94| 4,032,600.00] 3.75
CA V/R 12/01/77 12
VOLKSWAGEN INT 2168
12 3.875 3,400,000 | 120.76 | 4,105,897.52|115.87| 3,939,678.57 3.67
V/R /PERP//EUR/ 14
VOLVO TREASU V/R 2078
13 4.85 2,960,000 | 124.64 | 3,689,424.60| 127.55| 3,775,349.73| 3.51
03/10/78/EUR/ 10
ORSTED A/S V/R 3017
14 2.25 3,100,000 | 116.79| 3,620,385.68 | 117.47| 3,641,483.79 3.39
11/24/17/EUR/ 11 24
BHP BILLITON V/R 2076
15 4.75 2,850,000 | 123.28 | 3,513,395.31|122.75| 3,498,323.02 3.26
04/22/76/EUR/ 22
ENGIE SA V/R 2168
16 1.375 2,900,000 | 119.07| 3,452,952.74|113.88| 3,302,519.97 3.07
/PERP//EUR/ 16
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ORANGE SA V/R 2168
17 2.375 2,500,000 111.52| 2,788,034.79| 117.78 2,944,509.73 2.74
/PERP//EUR/ 15
ENEL SPA V/R 2078
18 2.5 1,867,000 110.29| 2,059,103.02| 114.66 2,140,737.66 1.99
11/24/78/EUR/ 11 24
ENEL SPA V/R 2076
19 6.625 1,175,000 | 140.58 1,651,762.14 | 138.75 1,630,342.47 1.52
09/15/76/GBP/ 15
SOLVAY SA V/R 2168
20 4.25 1,200,000 | 115.73 1,388,774.76 | 124.64 1,495,699.91 1.39
/PERP//EUR/
BHP BILLITON V/R 2077
21 6.5 989,000 | 146.37 1,447,639.45| 144.57 1,429,757.64 1.33
10/22/77/GBP/ 10 22
VOLKSWAGEN INT 2168
22 2.5 1,185,000 118.71 1,406,657.90 | 115.55 1,369,299.57 1.27
V/R /PERP//EUR/ 20
ACCOR SA V/R 2168
23 4.375 1,000,000 | 112.89 1,128,855.61 | 124.70 1,246,985.99 1.16
/PERP//EUR/ 30
TOTAL SA V/R 2168
24 2.708 1,000,000 | 119.12 1,191,155.91121.71 1,217,092.49 1.13
/PERP//EUR/
DANONE SA V/R 2168
25 1.75 1,000,000 | 111.46 1,114,578.55] 115.87 1,158,728.99 1.08
/PERP//EUR/ 23
ORANGE SA V/R 2168
26 5.25 870,000 | 126.15 1,097,485.96 | 133.13 1,158,193.76 1.08
/PERP//EUR/
GRAND CITY PRO 2167
27 2.5 1,000,000 | 121.12 1,211,228.161 113.88 1,138,799.99 1.06
V/R /PERP//EUR/ 10 24
NGG FINANCE V/R 2076
28 4.25 925,000 | 117.61 1,087,893.10| 117.86 1,090,235.47 1.01
06/18/76/EUR/ 18
ARKEMA V/R 2167
29 2.75 900,000 112.61| 1,013,457.73]116.98| 1,052,797.82 0.98
/PERP//EUR/ 17
ELIA SYSTEM OP 2167
30 2.75 600,000 117.11 702,684.95| 119.98 719,887.40 0.67
V/R /PERP//EUR/ 12
2018 2019
62,318,176.00 6,717,276,191 10.44 1,125
2018 28
47,211,429.00 5,088,919,932 10.02 1,080
2019 28
2018 58,972,153.46 6,356,608,421 10.24 1,104
57,272,429.00 6,173,395,122 10.17 1,096
55,400,502.02 5,971,620,113 10.16 1,095
10 51,645,752.20 5,566,895, 630 9.98 1,076
11 49,484,180.74 5,333,899,842 9.69 1,044
12 47,521,688.53 5,122,362,807 9.57 1,032
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2019 48,198,805.10 5,195,349,202 9.89 1,066
47,211,429.00 5,088,919,932 10.02 1,080
46,594,424 .86 5,022,413,056 10.10 1,089
43,969,265.97 4,739,447,179 10.23 1,103
42,238,430.82 4,552,880,458 10.10 1,089
42,421,355.39 4,572,597,897 10.41 1,122
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2018 28 9,393,871,563 10,313
2019 28 7,174,360,266 9,675
2018 8,910,127,742 10,024
8,315,328,669 9,939

8,185,381,850 9,916

10 7,704,940,135 9,726

11 7,384,851,305 9,424

12 6,994,195,342 9,280

2019 7,150,012,532 9,573
7,174,360,266 9,675

7,124,083,918 9,741

7,143,920,573 9,849

7,012,218,596 9,701

7,003,939,252 9,981
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0.27 29 225
0.36 39 300
2018 0.03 3 25
0.03 3 25
0.03 3 25
10 0.03 3 25
11 0.03 3 25
12 0.03 3 25
2019 0.03 3 25
0.03 3 25
0.03 3 25
0.03 3 25
0.03 3 25
0.03 3 25
0.75 81 625
7.10 5.38
-0.57 -3.28
100x
10
10,000
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6,550,758 581,344 5,969,414
(6,550,758) (581,344) (5.,969,414)
436,038 1,691,451 4,714,001
(436,038) (1,691,451) (4,714,001)
1,018,701 107,794 910,907
(1,018,701) (107,794) (910,907)
101,095 270,488 741,514
(101,095) (270, 488) (741,514)
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2019 28
NB
2019 28
117,405,426 110,381,975 11,898,073
515 56
2,701,440 2,704,829 291,554
115,318 12,430
27,915 3,009
1,918,849 206,833
1,052,322 113,430
116,201,723 12,525,384
1,224,521 131,991
431,056 46,464
118,352 12,757
103,613 11,168
56,189 6,057
52,359 5,644
14,595 1,573
9,104 981
78 8
2,518,102 271,426
14,253 1,536
4,542,222 489,606
111,659,501 12,035,778
118,239,600 12,745,046
(2,055,556) (221,568)
3,966,318 427,529
(8,490,861) (915,230)
111,659,501 12,035,778
7,174,360,266
741,514 9,675
47,211,429
4,714,001 10.02 1,080
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NB

2019 28

5,044,434 543,740
5,044,434 543,740
853,798 92,031
853,797 92,031
211,184 22,764
99,440 10,719
65,677 7,079
22,922 2,471
19,703 2,124
4,145 447
76,765 8,274
2,207,431 237,939
2,837,003 305,801
(2,031,260) (218,950)
7,915,421 853,203
5,884,161 634,254
(10,987,180) (1,184,308)
(4,676,937) (504,127)
(15,664,117) (1,688,435)
(9,779,956) (1,054,181)
(6,942,953) (748,381)
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NB

2019 28

2,837,003 305,801
5,884,161 634,254

(15,664,117) (1,688,435)

(6,942,953) (748,381)

(2,281,649) (245,939)

(2,003,530) (215,960)

(4,285,179) (461,899)

101,095 9,479,050 1,021,747
436,038 4,481,179 483,026
270,488 (24,373,932) (2,627,266)
1,601,451 (17,052,748) (1,838,116)
(27,466, 451) (2,960,609)

(38,694,583) (4,170,889)

150,354,084 16,206,667

111,659,501 12,035,778
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2019 28

(6,942,953) (748,381)
(82,720,942) (8,916,490)
103,153,501 11,118,916

2,638 284
2,189,032 235,956
10,987,180 1,184,308
4,660,611 502,367
(170,914) (18,423)
41,618 4,486
634 68

2,591 279
54,484 5,873
(3,117) (336)
(18,116) (1,953)
(2,848) (307)
(37,019) (3,990)
78 8

12,754 1,375

31,209,212 3,364,041

14,901,473 1,606,230
(41,326,837) (4,454,620)

(4,285,179) (461,899)
(30,710,543) (3,310,289)

498,669 53,752

2,206,675 237,857

2,705,344 291,609

55/178



(€))

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 28
2019 28 2019 28
10,313 10.44 1,125
214 0.22 24
(552) (0.28) (30)
(338) (0.06) (6)
(300) (0.36) (39)
9,675 10.02 1,080
(3.29) (0.54)
7,174,360 47,211 5,088,874
1.65 1.72
® 2.16 2.16

@
&)
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NB
2019 28
(@D)
98.9
3.1
3.1
BHP Billiton Finance Ltd.
2,850,000 4.75% due 04/22/76 3.1 3,502,598
3,502,598
3,502,598
1.5
1.5
Elia System Operator S.A.
600,000 2.75% due 12/05/23() 0.6 689,921
Solvay S.A.
800,000 4.25% due 03/04/24®M 0.9 961,436
1,651,357
1,651,357
9.6
9.6
Enbridge, Inc.
5,909,000 5.50% due 07/15/77 5.0 5,461,964
360,000 6.00% due 01/15/77 0.3 352,784
Transcanada Trust
5,115,000 5.30% due 03/15/77 4.2 4,756,950
100,000 5-88% due 08/15/76 0.1 99,500
10,671,198
10,671,198
3.1
3.1
Orsted AS®
3,100,000 2.25% due 11/24/17 3.1 3,449,698
3,449,698
3,449,698
10.0
10.0
Accor S.A.
2,000,000 4.38% due 04/30/24® 2.1 2,348,314
Danone S.A.
100,000 1.75% due 06/23/23%) 0.1 110,169
Engie S.A.
5,800,000 1.38% due 04/16/23 5.6 6,307,325
Orange S.A.
870,000 5.25% due 02/07/24® 1.0 1,113,225
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Q)
Solvay Finance S.A.
100,000 5.87% due 06/03/24(M 0.1 128,977
TOTAL S.A.
1,000,000 2.71% due 05/05/23M 1.1 1,192,788
11,200,798
11,200,798
10.4
10.4
Bayer AG
5,298,000 2.38% due 04/02/75 5.3 5,949,127
Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA
100,000 3.00% due 04/23/75 0.1 115,217
EnBW Energie Baden-Wuerttemberg AG
4,565,000 3.63% due 04/02/76 4.9 5,420,169
Evonik Industries AG
100,000 2.13% due 07/07/77 0.1 113,016
11,597,529
11,597,529
1.7
1.7
Enel SpA
232,000 2.50% due 11/24/78 0.2 253,660
1,175,000 6.63% due 09/15/76 1.5 1,668,361
1,922,021
1,922,021
1.1
1.1
Grand City Properties S.A.
1,000,000 2.50% due 10/24/23M 1.0 1,064,115
SES S.A.
100,000 4.63% due 01/02/22(%) 0.1 118,425
1,182,540
1,182,540
15.7
15.7
Telefonica Europe BV
6,100,000 2.63% due 06/07/23M 6.0 6,679,827
TenneT Holding BV
100,000 3.00% due 06/01/24( 0.1 115,218
Volkswagen International Finance NV
1,285,000 2.50% due 03/20/22(1) 1.3 1,444,573
3,600,000 2.70% due 12/14/22) 3.6 4,020,080
4,900,000 3.88% due 06/14/27® 4.7 5,279,291
17,538,989
17,538,989
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(@)
2.1
2.1
Fastighets AB Balder
1,000,000 3.00% due 03/07/78 1.0 1,101,134
Volvo Treasury AB
960,000 4.85% due 03/10/78 1.1 1,194,606
2,295,740
2,295,740
26.6
26.6
NGG Finance PLC
6,495,000 5.63% due 06/18/73 8.3 9,224,292
SSE PLC
1,600,000 2.38% due 04/01/21(M 1.6 1,819,349
SSE PLC
9,110,000 4.75% due 09/16/77 7.9 8,792,280
Vodafone Group PLC
8,925,000 3.10% due 01/03/79 8.8 9,858,793
29,694,714
29,694,714
14.0
14.0
Energy Transfer operating LP
3,851,000 6.63% due 02/15/28(%) 3.1 3,504,410
Enterprise Products Operating LLC
610,000 4.88% due 08/16/77 0.5 552,218
7,000,000 5.38% due 02/15/78 5.4 6,127,415
NextEra Energy Capital Holdings, Inc.
4,290,000 4.80% due 12/01/77 3.4 3,753,750
NiSource, Inc.
1,800,000 5.65% due 06/15/23(M 1.6 1,737,000
15,674,793
15,674,793
117,405,426 110,381,975
117,405,426 98.9 110,381,975
1.1 1,277,526
100.0 111,659,501
(12,035,777,613 )
@
(@) 3017 11 24
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Citibank NA
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Brown Brothers
Harriman & Co.
Brown Brothers
Harriman & Co.
Brown Brothers
Harriman & Co.
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation

339,420
284,875
23,641
4,125,066

863,210
72,301
388,124
1,043,458
250,137
1,042,901
942,000
450,000
600,000

1,800,000

10,607,589
797,215
316,698
513,538
646,425
428,773

49
296,082
69,289,104

823,059
32,622
516,297
3,176,500
368,760

389,585

2019
2019
2019
2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019
2019
2019
2019
2019
2019
2019
2019
2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019
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16
16
16
16

16

16

16

16

16

16

16

16
16
16
16
16
16
16
16
16

16

16

16

16

16

16

(386,727) 1,223
(322,777) 2,829
(27,479) (458)
(4,769,315) (54,447)
(983,579) 3,053
(82,445) 194
(443,541) 77
(1,206,720) (14,068)
(287,747) (1,846)
(942,000) (63,830)
(1,206,076) 49,769
(4,067) (24)
(5,423) (33)
(16,268) (98)
(8,265,708) (411,987)
(687,385) 11,548
(273,917) 3,617
(448,609) 787
(560,512) 5,771
(375,709) (655)
(5,324) 1
(225,579) (4,653)
(59,929,392) 791,013
(716,438) 4,185
(28,208) 380
(455,395) (4,211)
(2,753,258) 29,581
(322,790) (183)
(341,378) (603)
346,932
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Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs

Royal Bank of Canada

Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Citibank NA
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs

Goldman Sachs

State Street Bank

and Trust Co.
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation

7,343,516,569
53,321,700
44,959,700
52,850,352
42,757,875
47,837,876
18,580,535
27,798,330
32,500,112

2,209,494
18,301,995
31,117,714

2,203,592

2,204,879

110,347,020

706,946
3,236,135
171,249
270,131
279,294

183,417
171,909
250,382
168,830
82,760
164,025
20,111
81,555
123,904
513
243,393

57,688

2019
2019
2019
2019
2019
2019
2019
2019
2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019
2019
2019
2019
2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019
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16
16
16
16
16
16
16
16
16

16

16

16

16

16

16

16
16
16
16
16

16

16

16

16

16

16

16

16

16

16

16

16

(68,066,048)
(495,717)
(412,827)
(492,181)
(394,913)
(439,221)
(171,737)
(251,413)
(297,586)

(20,026)
(165,920)
(282,041)

(20,218)

(20,248)

(1,027,353)

(76,172,450)
(349,140, 486)
(18,427,952)
(29,209,029)
(30,688, 855)

(20,269, 200)
(18,724,489)
(27,221,830)
(18,608,422)
(9,130,336)
(17,909,769)
(2,189,981)
(8,865,094)
(13,493,128)

(55,753)
(26,144,597)

(6,357,780)

(1,860,106)
(14,992)
(7,490)
(15,705)
(9,426)
(7,935)
(4,223)
(796)
(4,579)

(106)
(917)
(1,497)
(352)
(370)

(32,512)

20,208
88,437
5,111
6,795
2,616

678
3,098
4,962
1,065

445
2,559

367
1,632
2,256

11
7,685

369

(1,812,712)
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NB
2019 28
2016 12 16
2012 10 15
2009 a CIMA
2017 22
LLC
CIBC
UFJ PB
FASB ASC

946

GAAP
GAAP
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12

GAAP

2019 28

63/178



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 28
110,381,975 110,381,975
1,052,322 1,052,322
111,434,297 111,434,297
2019 28
2,518,102 2,518,102
2,518,102 2,518,102
FASB ASC 740
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72 12,796,961 57 8,966,116
36
24,193,382 69 927,019

)
)
)
() ) )

2018 28 88,035,908 62,318,176 150,354,084
9,479,050 4,481,179 13,960,229

(24,373,932)  (17,052,748)  (41,426,680)

(2,281,649)  (2,003,530)  (4,285,179)

(6,411,305) (531,648)  (6,942,953)
2019 28 64,448,072 47,211,429 111,659,501
2018 28 910,907 5,969,414 6,880,321
101,095 436,038 537,133
(270,488)  (1,691,451)  (1,961,939)
2019 28 741,514 4,714,001 5,455,515
2019 28 86.91 10.02
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10.00
10,000
10

2019 28
2019 28 431,056

10

2017
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ASC  815-10-50

a b
c
ASC 815
ISDA 1SDA
1SDA
2019 28 MNA
MNA
(O]

Citibank NA 21,431 21,431
Goldman Sachs 918,525 (918,525)
State Street Bank And Trust Co. 678 678
Westpac Banking Corporation 111,688 (111,688)

1,052,322 (1,030,213) 22,109

2019 28 MNA
MNA
(O)

Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 155 155
Goldman Sachs 2,392,873 (918,525) 1,474,348
Royal Bank of Canada 4,579 4,579
Westpac Banking Corporation 120,495 (111,688) 8,807

2,518,102 (1,030,213) 1,487,889

@
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2019 28
1,052,322 2,518,102
2019 28
8,039,097 (4,660,611)
0.65
0.30 0.35
2019 28
853,798 2019 28 56,189
0.08 2.5
0.07 2.5
0.06
80,000
0.015
15,000 2019
28 19,703 2019 28 14,595
0.05
2019 28 65,677
2019 28 9,104
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2019 28
12
13

2019 28
2019 2019 26 1,174,845
4,470,606 657,440
2019 2019 26 286,825
6,479,525 522,599
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MEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

February 28, 2019

(Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)
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AR
IFreirsbemie i Ladioritiag, B e [soat o USD 117406, 426) (17 110,381,875
Lk 515
Foiipn currency, at valui (oost of USD 2, 70704409 2.704,829
Heusnvable for immesbments. sodd 115,318
Racoivabip for Ln s isespd 35
Irtirirst ridivablio 18R
L rdel pind Apoied 3t o forward Tonepn currendy axdh nge contrach 1,052,332
Toaaml dasats 116.304.725
Liabilities:
il B ik trrdrat & purclaad 1.2334,521
Pt for Lirity. ripdisrmeind 438,056
Ascnsad distribubor's foos 118,352
Aocrogd prokevnon s e 03,613
Adtruad misinkpa et fie S&180
Ascnard custody and sub-administrat ors fee 52,359
Ascrad trated fine 1,585
Arcoant aparh company’ s foe 3,104
Areiuand regraration ldos -3
Urrpafined dagirdd AEon o frwird Toraipn Surrindy duh gl Sontnaits 251,102
Ot Rabel s 14,253
Tl liwhbitiine [N FFFH]
Ker Areert Amribuealde To Unithalden Ush 118651, 501
nabyuin of Net Alisti:
Pardin cagial L 118 295, B
Accumulaiod dstributions in ascess of net Imvestmant incoms 055,556
Accurmltied o rddiinid G B imvelmet and Racaign urminsy et ans. and farwaed

for aigr Curmency auchan pe Comracts 3,966,318
et vt e st o 0 s s B faraipn urrendy transactions. wd Forwird focgn

furmercy aechan pe contradiy A0 R0
Kot Arieti Amributale to Unithelden LisD 110.650.501
et Aszet Valae per Unit
AP Class BFY 7174, 360,260 + M1L514 Unlts tevianding) 14 A5TS
ALISD Claks USD AT, 211470+ 4,718,007 Urits tuititandingd [T 00T

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial steiemends.
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MEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2019
[Expressed in United States Dallar)
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InyeSrend Ingonee:
e st
Total Brwiss bk Incoma

Expenies:
I anaperint fiy
Destribuliors foes
Cualodan artd wh-admanplrates foed
Prativsonl fives
gt company’s fers
Transfar agimt foas.
Trustiri foes
Rogwrason
O g ik

Toval Espirrias

K [rwestiment Inoome

Reakred and Unrealved Galns/ [Losses)
Realiced ganutjlnse)
IrvirR ML in SRourtie

Fonsipn Survandy transactsng and Braacd foralgn durensy sachange corrads

Bk radliped gavm,
Chaw e i el (e Ao it n| dape o atinn|
VAT N SO

Fariij curtandy trin mctiont and Breand ianein ot andy inthang cortr s

Birt aaga a ook ied deprsiaton
Wk il i v e o el lioaaas.

e decrwats in AT a3 s neduiting from opedations

50 503438
S8

53,790
#53,797
3,188
A0
55,677
22,922
15,703
4,145

6. 165
2307431

1,237,003

LRLAL260)
T205.421
5,494,161

(10,537,160
515,337
[15.564,117)
13 773,956)

S0 Eﬂ.!ii!

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial steiemends.
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MEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
STATEMENT OF CHAMNGES IN NET ASSETS
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019
|Expressed in United States Dallar)

Increace [Decreate)in et et frome

Dper atloni:
it it ir e [ H LEITL0R
Kt rimbred gans 5/ERL el
it ehanpd in unnisktaed diseiation Im]]i‘l
Net decreass i niet asseb el ting from oparabion IE.W.‘F-H!
Bimributiond b Unitheldere
PV Qs (22818450
USR Oms 2003530
Total Distributions RS 179)
Cagital Trandaction:
LELE L]
FPY Oland (100,055 Unats) 9473050
LI5S0 ik (4305, 038 Uity 4R
L0 igs rintaemad
FIY Clans [FTOLASE i) (24,272,932§
LiSh s {1,680,45] Uity (L7050 Ty
(Mt decreass i net assebl rewlting from capital traraactomn, 27 AESAS L
Total Deorease in et Acorts _ {3speasas)
K Asseie
Bagirming of ysar 150,554, 024
End o yee s 111,659,500

The accompanying notes are an imegral part of these financial staiemends.
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MEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2019
|Expressed in United States Dallar)

Cath flows from operating actvities:
it distridi i ik Bikirth rewulEng Fro Sk L5 {6, R8F.253)

Adpstments to reconcle the net decreass inonet assets resulting from operation to net cah provided by
ophrating soidte:

Prghuni of imnrst mists. LRk ]
Pz inget Frov il el Prakueily o irmeirirner L 103155500
Wit amdrtizakion and [adiretian] of pramibume and dsdounts. an Sorpor b dobit ablgitiond and thaet hisrm

Ly biay oy i T0:33
Raalipiad Pordd 30 Fricci Bt A sheusitien. F1E.037
Chiwpir iy wrradlipied digrind ion an irvistrnts IREET180
Charpe in unradliped divpradation on forwand foneign comendy indange contracty AEE0E01
Change In assets and labilities related to operations:
e i) FEEEL s i R e ]
Drissraiin in priiphdid dssirty &1.648
Peoraase in other insaty 34
Do i accrond cutnd i and ademinislrabor’s feas 1551
Diasrgnes in sotnod peofousion bl Ry L8
Inereans i acorued inusteds Tevs. 1
Irer i iry e Erubd g i Fis {181560
lIncreaar in adtruad agert comeany™s fee jrEE)y
lrer s i acoruad destributad™s foe LERAEL]
Dicrasd in g s ation fees m
Dtraise i Stinsrd st labditiin 17154
et cath provided by operating actheties a,709.212
Cashiflows used in finandng acthites
o o Linits imsaid 14,001 473
Pt i Ln L fediermand BLEMEIT
Cestvibukions pald Lo Lin kol dors 1285175
et cath ed in finanding acthities B0, Ta0.543)
et ingreate in coth and forsign oom ency SR EE
T e Roeaign curminily W Bagin rieg of year LG5S
Cagh ard forelgm cusrency at end of year wsD 2,705,344

The accompanying notes are an imegral part of these financial staiemends.
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MEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND

FINAMCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2019
Selected Per Unit Data and Ratios

[Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)
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Kt Aot Valia, bognning of year

Kt irmveitrint incoma ™

i bk g d el ad v

et dpsreand in Mt A5a0t resulting from oparaioem

ILarns chakn Dot s

Wi Aanark Value, e of year

Total ritwrn

Rt Supplemental dotn;
Net assets md of year {000
Rstan of upeinis s 1 dnodr gt fart sty
Rittn oF Ak | rvinbrm ent ne dena 10 dverage nik diity™

= Calouabed waing aver e Linits outstanding for the year.
¥ Calouiatad an an annual Basis

P e

USD Claes

Fiof the Year Ercled  Foor the Year Ended
Fabruany 38, 2020 Pebrussy 3, 2010

1P 10318 UsD 1604
214 b

f552) joze)

[} {006}

=) in.26)

Y 3,675 LSk 1003
(Rrs Pt

IFt 1172360 Ush &#7.1
1Ea% LT

LI1E% LIE%

The accompanying notes are an imegral part of these financial staiemends.
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MEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
PORTOLIO OF INVESTMENTS

February 28, 2019
[Expressed in United States Dollar)
Principal % of et
Cur Amount  Security Desiriggion Asvwts Fair Value
FRAED | WOOHAE SECURITIES [38.9%)
AUSTRALIA [3,1%]
CORPORATE BOMDS. & MOTES [1.1%)
EMF Bil ton France Lid,
(11 LES00 o, 75 due Qi G 1% LI b
TOTAL CORPORKTE 80N B HOTES — 3s0neE
TivTAL ALSTTRALIA o 3shpeAE
BELGAIM [1.5%)
CORPORATE BOMDA & MOTES [1.5%)
B Sytben Dperabor 5.4
(O BO0S00 27N dus 12MRAF e 89,971
Soivay 54,
EUR OO0 A2 dueDRMa e (L] 614346
TOTAL CORPORATE BOMDS B MOTES 1,651,357
TITAL EELGAIM 1851087
CAMADA [36%)
CORPORATE BOMNDS & MOTES (9. 5%)
Exitisige, e
wso 908,000 5500 due 07 1577 50 BA61954
uED WO G0N due D157 n3 iR
Tra rocsnads Trust
WD 5115000 530N due D357 ag A 756,950
i 1D S due DA 15/76 ol —_—  hahh
TOTAL CORPORATE BOMDS B MOTES o laEnise
TOTAL CAMALA, _ WEnIE
DERMARY [3.1%)
CORFORATE BONDS & NOTES [1,1%)
Cruted &5™
il LI00000 238 doe 13IAAT 11 LA4DENE
TOTAL CORPORATE BOMDS B MOTES — lmugsE
TOTAL DEMRAARK Y lMuess
FRANCL [10.0%)
COPCARA TE B NS & MOTES (1000
Agcer 1A,
(L1 21000000 4530 due 04104 il 1.BA 14
Danonmg 5.4
EUR 100000 LTSN due D813V 1 110,169
Engle 5.4
[LH ] B L3 due D116, 3 W6 Lh B
Crangs 5.4
[T BIOCO0 S9N dueDQiIR QS 1] 1,113,224
Soiy Frunce LA,
[T 100000 537 due D58 %] 12897
TOTAL5.A
BUR LOMOO00 7% due D553 11 1.192.788
TOTAL COMPORATE BOMOS & HOTES 11,300, P8
TOTAL FRARILE 11,300, mik
GERMANY {10L4%)
CORPORATE BONDS & MOTES (104%)
Eayer AG
g 208,000 2. dus DTS a2l E5 S
Eoresmann S & Ca, EGad
EUK 100000 300 dueD4FI3 TS (%] 115217
ENEW Enevgie Eaten Wusrtiembeng AG
EUR; 4565000 360 dur D4LE as S0
Wik inckrtr ies &l
[T 100000 231 dued RO 5] 113,006
TOTAL CORPORATE BOMCE & NOTIS [EETELTE]
TOTAL GERMULNY 11 887,535
TTALY {1.7%]
CORPEMRA TE BOMCE & MOTES (1,7}
Enel Spa
FUR 1Ep00 250Mduellfiafre [LF] I35

The accompanying notes are an imtegral part of these financial staiemens.
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MEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
PORTOLIO OF INVESTMENTS (continued)
February 28, 2019

[Expressed in United States Dallar}
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Principal %% of et
Curreedy  Amoust  Seoudty Deipton Asuets Falr Value
FIND |NCCH SECUIITIES: |9 9%] s ontimnd |
FEALY [1.7%] feontisnd]
CEH PORATE BEHCE & NOTES (1, 7% [ontinued)
g LIFRA00 ST due DWISNE 1aN un LE68, 6
TOTAL CORPORATE BONCH B NOTIR 1585031
THNTAL FTALY 1,502,021
WLLINERAR LR | 1 1%)
COHEPORATE BOMDE & MOTES (1.1%)
Grand iy Prapenie: 5.4,
EUR LOGLODD  2.50% due 1071423 1] 1.064.11%
BES Sk,
21 100 48P due DML [ h] 118435
TiTAL CORPORATE BOMDS B MOTES A EBESAY
TIITAL LUKEMBOUNG 1 IRL 540
METHERLANGS (1575
CORPORATE BENLE & NOTES [15.7%)
Telelonlcs Lurags IV
[T EINOO0D 26M due DS FY ] EETAATT
TerneT Holding BV
FUR 100000 3000 due DEMOLRS™ nl 115215
ol kwragper Intierna B gnal Firanoe MY
LU LILO00  250Mdue DN - ] LaaanTl
EUW AEH0000 2NN dus 1271402 16 0080
Eu# ASOMODD 35BN due DEM1AFY a7 5379281
TETAL COHPORATE BOMDS & MOTES 17 S3R08Y
TEITAL NETHERLAMLE 17 50R00
SWEDEN [L.1%)
CORPORA TE B ONCS. & MOTES [2.1%)
Fastighets B Eaider
EUR LON0G00 300N due DOTNE 1] LI0LEH
Walva Triwtory Al
[T SEIO00 A5 Hus0L10TE 11 L104 506
TETAL EORPORATE BOMCE & MOTE 1305140
TETAL SWEDEM 1395 14
UNITED KRGO | B5.6%)
CORPOSA TE BONCS & MOTES [26.6%)
MGG Franee LT
GEF BASSO00 S dueDE/18ST3 a3 a.3ia29]
SSEPLE ;
E LEGOO00 2.0 due O40LRT -] LA
usn SUI0A00 AT dur DHIESTT 1 ] BTN
ot ne oo PLE
EUR LSS000  3I0% dueDM0INT as 0858733
TINTAL EOPORATE BOMDS R MOTES B0, A
TEITAL LRITED KING D 9,854 714
UINITED STATES {14 .4%)
COHEPOARA T B ONS. & MOTES (1409
Ener gy Trarder operaling LP
Ui LELOOD 660N due DU1A0EY %] REaA10
Ererprine Procuds Geenting LS
usn EI0S00  453% dueDR/16ST7 oS 552,213
[0k ] TNOM00 53N dueDRM1STE 54 B12TA15
FondErs Energy Capial Nokdng,
L] 40000 A5 due 11010 L L
P o, e,
w5 LEMLO00 5558 due D515 {13 16 1737,
TETAL COMPGRATE BOMDE & MOTES 1 i
TETAL LRITEE: STATIS 1% 874 781
TETAL FINED INCONEE SECURTTES [Covt USDE17,805,425) 119,381 975
TOTAL NVESTRIENTS [Coed LISDTT A0 A B8 Ly WD 11 AT
CASH AND CTHER ASSETS: B EXCESS OF LLABRLITIES 11 LTE5TE
NET ASSITS . R T T YT

e roptal weunty. Watute difte presarfedr one Lok the e relldete

g bty ke o Bt vt LARIATIST

The accompanying notes are an imtegral part of these financial steiemends.
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MEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND

PORTOLIO OF INVESTMENTS {continued)

February 28, 2019

{Expressed in United States Dallar}
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[Fured Level Forward Farslpn Curreroy Exciange Conracts

ERVNRIREREEEREEN

FEFEFRRR TR

Kt Unrnalited

Wothonal  Settlement INotional Agpreciation/

Cosmterpary Amourk Date Sall At {Depreciation]
Tk MA, AN | OGRS U 88727} [ET) 1303
Gyl e Sy 284,375 4AE2019 D [32.7F7) LI
Gl teran Sadh 23580 4/152MF U (AT A58}
Gt dran Sacm 2125066 DAMIRGEOIY . D A1) I52.aa7)
Wititnac Durki g Corporation BERIID OAMIEEMY wE OERETI LmE
Wik ae Il g Darpralion. 7 BMIERAMS  uin {8d.A5) m
Windinge Barking Cargeealinn FEE 1M 452N U [243.84%) ¥
Wedpar Barking Corposaion Loa3458 0af1RRme use 12087305 14,06}
Winikpac Barking Corporation FLRET] 0af1mE U (287787} I1808)
‘Wettpac Barking Corporalisn Loazaa] CAfIRAI01%  GEP 12000 |ahak
Wi igie ki ng Corparation MO0 CWLAR0 U (1. 208.076) a9, P
e (Berthe Harsiman & Ca Asp000  OROLINe WSO D67) 124)
B (et Hanriman & Co 00000 LMY WSO RAD) 133
1B e Berthes Harrimar & Co, LE0Mm0  NLEms U (ORI [ET]
Galdman Sacn 06075 DAMIER0IS Gep (25T (A11.087)
finkErin e s BRI aun LR 11
Gnidman Sadh EA N BIMRAMS EUR 273017) EYSE
Gaidman dacm siksk B4f1EM0S  duR [R5 wr
Goldran Sadm BabATS 4f1IRf IS EUR B2 3771
Gabtman Saom A1%,773 41628 EUR [EE% 1) [655)
i theren Sk 8 0fIEM I [FREL 1
Goldran Sadh Pl ARIMS  GEP RERATH 1853
Galdman Sadhi sH2ANI00 GAAMINIE  EUR (FAERAED) mLmy
WiniRase Arking Corparalion IR DAMAAME U [FI6AA) 4183
Wietnue Barking Cargelian. 232 04/162M9%  EUR |2 208) A
‘Wirthnae Barking Corpaealion 516,297 04/152MS  EUR [A55.355) Haxy
Wiedipac Barking Sorpoeraliion LIRS G4NGHEMS EuR fricls L E 18,581
Wrltp e Barking Corporalion R 6D GALENMS R Kby ] (.01}
WiniBaie Barning Peraseatisn, A 5E B4ME2S  (UR (341,378} (B8}
us 346937

The scoompanying rotes are an imegral par of these finarcial siatements,
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MEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES F

UND

PORTOLIO OF INVESTMENTS {continued)

February 28, 2019
{Expressed in United States Dallar}
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1Y Class Forvasrd Forslgn Cumeney Exnchangs Contraces

et Unrealized
® otignal Settlement Motioral Appreciation

g Coantarparly Amourt Dane Sall AU (D chation)
art it dman Sachi LMAMIATED  GAMIRNMR  WRD [SRO65.088) w0 [LAS0,2061
Y Gt theran Saer SELT AN vl [amrL) 1180a7)
W Gal e Sac ASED DAMIERMY U (312837 [rAT)
W Gt theran Sacin SEE0LI52 oIERms W (282 181) 118,705)
L il cheran S 43T 4TS qfIENNE  uin el k] Ba28)
e faldman Sacht ATEITATG CAMIER01Y  win [l (705
w Gl Sachry 16,58055 C4MIEQ0Y  win PR 18228
WY G theve S 3,ME33 DAMIERMI uSD 251,413} 96}
WY Ryl Bank of Carada 32,500,112 162ME  Usp 297586 5T
e ‘Witiknac Barking Corporalion Limam M/ IEMe U [t ] a0}
w Witinac Rarking Corporaliion WKL DAY WD (s E ] i
i Wirase Nirking Torpiralinn MURTE AN uEn (282041 (L7}
W WiHBpG B g TaAs . LS 04BN UsD [20.218) (1
Y ‘Wistknac Barking Corpovalion Lifasrs  o41ERME usD [20,248) [Exl]
P ‘Wekpac Barking Corporaion 130,387,000 LTl RS Larasiy 133558}
LE Citibank NA 06, CAMIER0TR e |MRARLA S,
uan G theras Sy LBAIN 042N Y (M080465) BRALY
e fGnkdman Sacht 1718 [T T Lo R [BLEFEE LS 411
R Galdean Sach 27aM afGRme 302005 67
[0 Gl Sac 2 [T T T T |3 EREHYS) LE16
15 ] Stabe Srest Bank snd Tl Co 183,417 4/152M 1Y 202692004 2E]
[ ] ‘Wit Barking Corpoealiion 171908 MAREMI . I [18.728,089) 30
15 ] ‘Wininac Barking Corporation. Fik ] DAALEAME Y FEFFVEE ] Ay
i Wit iRaie Bkl g Dorporilion, IERAN)  DAAAAMS 11BN 106
(1] Winltaue Hurning Darasealisn ALMED  DAMIERMI LRERE" s
15 1 Wetpar Barking Conpeeaiion 164,005 AERMe IR |17 909 763} 1559
uED Wintkpac Barking Corporation 20,111 C4IE2MmS Y PR LT T
(4] Wiriknac Barking Corporaliion BLSSE  DAMIRE01 R ANy 1632
\r Wi ipac Byrking Gorparaion ko CAAEEMY WY (R ELRE ] Lise
[55) WiriRaue Rarking Corporalion 513 D4MERMT Y 155, 753) 1
15 ] WirtnaC Barking Corpealion 243,39 D4EAMS Y |26,134.557) 585
(B3] ‘Wietknuo Barking Corpoealiion STEEE  DAMIREOIS R B3I TEN 363

uio (ALl
Currerey leprrd
R Eusrg
G British Fourd
w Mg Ven
[ US Dallar

The scoompanying rotes are an imegral par of these finarcial siatements,
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MEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019

ORGAMIZATION

NEUR Conporate Hybrid Securities Fund {the “Fund™) 15 a series tnust of the hilko AM Offshore Funds, an open-engied unk
trust extablished by a supplemental trudt deed dated Cecember 16, X6 {the “Supplemertal Trust Deed ™), under the bees
of the Cayman [slands, Nikko AM Offshore Fungs was established by 2 master trust desd dated October 15, 2002 [the
“Master Trust Deed™), under the ks of the Cayman slands and is licensed with 1he Cayman island s Monetary fusdhosity
pursuant 1o section 2[1}{a) of the Muiual Funds Law (2009 Revision]. The Fund commenced operations on February 22,
LT,

The fund's astets ane managed on a day to day basis by Rikko AM Global Cayman Limited {3he *Manager™). The Manager
delpgates vesiment maragement duties to Nikko Assel Management Co, (G4, (the “invesimer: Manager™. The
Imepstment Manager delegates irvestment maragement duties 1o Neuberger Serman invesiment Advisers LLC, (the “Sub-
Irepstimerd Marager™], The admiristration of the Fund s delegated to Srown Brathers Hamman & Co, (the “Custodian”
and “Sub-Administrator], a Emited partnership organized under the lrws of the State of New York,

Thae irvestment objective of thie Fund is to achisve 2 mid to long term total retum through income and capital apprediation.
The Series Trust shall mainly imvest in both imestment grade and non-Evestment grade hybrid securities that are issued by
ron-financial corporate Bsuers and have been rated by either of Moody's, S&F or Fitch, The highest mting from all thres of
thete agenciet shall be appled to each corporate bybwid security and the aversge rating of the portfolio shall be B88-/Baa3
o above.

Corparate hybrid debt seourities ane structuned instruments that combine both eguity and fived incomne chacieristics that
generally ofer a means for issuers to bommow rmoney from nvestons in returm for imterest payments. Such corporate isswers
may utilize hybeid debt for a variety of reasors, induding bolviering their capital Brvels, lowering thelr weighted average
oost of capital, civertifying their funding sources and managing oredit ratings. Though tesms and conditions hawe becoms
incressingly standardized, the specific dharacteristes of eachi # {such a3 payment condition, the ratio of debt and
equity-libe femtures, time frames and applicable rates) can vary.

The Series Trust may abo ireest in fixed and floating rate debt secuities, induding bonds, issued by governments and
govenrment related entities,

Cerieative instruments will e wied e eFfiderd portfolio manag 1 andfo i purpodes oaly.

The masets of the Series Trmt may be hidd in one or more currencies, and the Series Trust will, in principle, engage in
currency hedging betwren the currency of denomiration of each Qlass (LS, Dollar for LSO Class and Japanese Yen for [7Y
Clss] and the currency of the investments in the underdying portfolio, provided, however, that such hedging for JPY Class
iy b perionrraied through the LS, Dol

Under the terms of the Supplemental Trust Deed and the Master Trust Geed, CIBC Bark and Trust Company {Cayman)]
Limited (the “Trustee™ and the “Administrator”] i named as Trustes of the fund,

Thie Marager appointed Mitsubishi UF] Mofgan Starley PB Seourities Co, Ud 1o 821 33 Agent Company (the “Agent
Company™] and the Manrager appointed Mitsubishi UF) Morgan Stanley PB Securities Co,, Ud b a1 as Distribuior [the
" Dastributed”) of Uinits in Japan of such oiher person of instibution 8s may be appoanted as distributor of the Seres Trust by
th Marager froe time 1o teme,

SUMPAARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Fund is an investment Compary that follows the accounting and reporting guidance In FASE Accounting Standards
Cocification 9446,

Lse of Estimates

The accompanying finerdal statesnents have been prepared in accordance with accounting prindple: generally acepted in
the United Siates of Amenica (U5 GAAFTL The preparation of finandal statements in accordance with L5, GAAP requines
the Fund’s management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and labilities and
dischosures of contirgent assets and Babilities at the date of the fmandal gaiements and the reported amounts of
rivenues and expemses during the reporting period, Actual results, indheding the ultimate amourt realized vpon the aie of
Fair wasedd imsvmstnets, could ciffer from those estimates and such differences may be significant,
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019

SURARAARY OF SPGNIF ICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES {continued)

Busis of Accounling

Sprurity and contractual rarsactions are recorded on @ fradefcontract-date basis. heredt income i recorded on an
effective yield basis, net of 2y applicable withholding to. Intenest expense and other mpenses ans recorded on an aconial
basis. Realized gains and losses from security transactions ane computed on the basis of the average cost of the securities
sold of covered. Changes in the waluation of irmeestrments are fecarded in the Statement of Operations a4 unnsalinsd
appreciation or depe ecistion.

Walration of imvestmends

Bord: ard other debt decurities, induding restricted tecurities (other than dhort-tenm ebligations but ndudicg listed
issues) are fair walued at their list sale price in the principal market & which such secunities are normally traded, on 1he
lbasis af webuations furnithed by a pricing servce, use of which has been approved by the neestiment Manager, o if no ssle
has ocumed, the bid price on the valuation date as provided by brokers who are market malers in the securities. All debs
spcuritied with less then 12 months 1o maturity date, in priciple shall be fair valoed wing an amortised cost effecied by an
effective yield acoumulated/amontization mathod to their writy dafe with acj wris bawed on comparison with
markes paiices 85 requined,

In accordance with the suthoritative guidance on fair value messurements and disclosures under LS. GAAR, the Fund
ditckries the P vadue of it investments in & hierdnchy that priceitices the irputs to vilua tion Dedhniaquis wvied o

the Tair vebue. Tha hierarchy gives the Fighest priarity to vabuation: based upat unsdjusted quoted prices in active markets
for idertical assats of fisbities [Leved 1| messufement] and the lewest priarity to valustions based upon unobservable
inputs that are significant to the valeation (Lewd 3 medasurements]. The guidance establishes three lenels of the fair value
hitsrarchy as follows:

s Loved 1 = Inpists that reflect vradjusied quoted prices in active markets for identical investments that the: Fund
has theabdity 1o access ot the measurement date

s lewed F - nputs other than quoted prices that are significont and obserable for the asset or lability either
directhy or irdirsdly, nduding fputs inmickets thil srenst cortidered 10 b bctnne:

®  Lewel 3 =Inputs that are significant ang unobserable,

Impasts are used i applying the vanous valuation technigues and broadly refier to the assumptions that market participants
e b pralke viduation dednion s, encluding assumptions abou risk. fnputs may inchude prce information, spesilic and brosd
creci data, Riguidity statistics, and other factors, A firandal instrument’s el withan the Tair value hierarchy is based upon
the lowest fevel of any ivput that 5 significant to the fair value measurerment, However, the determination of whae
corstitutes “obsenable” recuines significant judgment by the nvesimen: Manrager, The investment Manager consicers
obsrrable data fo be market dats which it readily mailable, regulady distribated or updated, relishle and verifisble, not
propristary, ard provided by independent sources that are actively imobved In the relevar market. The categorization of a
finamdal instnament within the hieranchy is based wpon the pricing transparency of the instrument and does nat necessarily
coerespond bo the Irsestrert Marsger's perceraed risk of that instrument,

Irwestmerds whose values are based on the gquoted market prices in active markets, 2nd therefore classified within Level 1,
woudd inchude actively traded equities, certsin US goweenment and soversign obligations, and cerain money marke?
securities. The lmvestment Manager would not adjust the guoted price for such irstruments, even in stuations where the
Fund held a large position and a sale could reasorably impact the quoted price.

Imemstmerds that trade in markets that are not consicered to ba aclive, but ane valued based on quoted market prces,
dealer quotations or aliormative pridng sounces supported by cbservablis inputs are classified within Level 2. These indude
irvestmerd-grade debt securities, short-enm investrmonts and foeward forelgn currercy excharge comracts, As Lewd 2
inveshments indude positions that are rot traded in active markett ardfor are subject 1o transder restrictions, vabuations
may be adpsted to refloct @Equidity and/or non-tranderability, which ane grrerally based on available market information,

Iremstrerds dassified within Level 3 have shgnificant unobsenvable inputs, as they would trade frecuenly, Leval 3
instruments would include asset-backed secusities and oollsteralized mortgage obligations. As obserable prices are not
available for those securithes, the fund would wse valuation Techricues to derive the fair value,

Tha inputs of methodology wsed for valuing securities are not necassarlly an inclication of the rivk associated with investing
in those securities.
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MNEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019

SUPAPAARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES |continued)

Valuation of mvestmends [oont inued])

The fellowing table presents ke finandial instroments ciried on the Statement of Assels and Lisbilities by caption and by
level within the valustion hierarchy a5 of February 28, 3019, Further dssifications of the finandal istnaments are
presented in the Portfalio of nvestments. Thene were no mavements betwesn level during the year,

Axoend ot Fair Valuw Falk Valuw a1
Lével 1 Level 2 Leveld Febrisry 7H, 2018
[Fomand] lln e S0 s [t H = [ ] 11,391,975 st = LU H 110,381,975
Foeward Foeeign Cusrency
Exthaspe Contracts - 1062322 - LUSRIZE
Total LS = Lisn 119,434,297 [ 6] - L 111 434 797
Liabillities 3% Falr Value Fair Value 3t
Leveld Level 2 Level 3 Februsry 28, 2044
Farward Foragn Curnancy
Exchiargpe Do tracts LIS = LIS 2515103 [T ] - LIS 2512107
Total Al = B0 588,007 LS - Ul RGi6,107
Foreiga Currendy Tromsfation

isiets and lishdities beld in currencies ather than Urited States Dollor (“WUS0° or the “Functional Currency™) ane translated
to the Functional Currency at the rate of excharge prevalling at the finandal statement date. income and expenses are
trarslated 3t the rate of ochange prevailing 2% the date on which the ncome or expense i inoured. Realized and
unrealized gains and lowses arlsing on forelgn currency transactions are inchuded in the Statement of Operations in the
jpiricyd in which thisy ocowr.

The Fund does not isclate that portion of the results of operations resulting from changes in foreign exchange ates on
inveshmerts froem the fludustions ariding from change in market prides of secunities held, Sudh fluctuations are induded
with 1he ret realized and urmealized gain or loss from imeestment 5.

facome Texes

Under the cunrert laws of the Cayrran itlands, thesee are no incomes, withholding, capital gaint or other taces payable by
the Fund. in cerain jurisgicions other than the Cayman slands, foreign taxes may be withheld at source on chadends and
interest received by the Fund. Capital geins desined by the Fund in such jurisdictions generally will be eaempt from foreign
income: or withbolding taxes at sowrce. The Fund imfends to conduc its affairs such that it will not be sulbject to ncome 13x
in ary jurisdiction. Ay a rewlt, no provision for income taxes has been made in the finencial statements. Unitholders may
b famed o their proportionate shane of the Furd's taa besis intome Based an thesr indnidual crum stances.

Thee Fund folloes the autheritaties guidance on accounting for snd disdesure of uncertainty in tax positions {Finarmdal
Accounting Standard: Board {*FASE") - Acoounting Standards Codification T80, which requines the Manager to deferming
whether & tax podition of the Fund @8 mone likely thin not 1o be wussined upon exirination by the appliceble 1aming
authority, induding resohdion of any related appeals or litigation prooesies, based on the techrical merits of the position.
Far 1ax positions ﬂ‘ﬂth‘lﬁ the more leely than not thrshald, the tax benefit I'Hbﬁﬂiz‘ﬂﬂ‘ in the firsncal statements i
recuoed by the langest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likelibood of being realised vpon ultimate setilement
with the rdeant taxing suthority. The Marsger it detecmaned that there i mirimal o no effect on the finarcal
staternents being under this authoritatiee guidance.

Fovword Foreign Curremcy Excfrimge Contrnils

Thie Furd fady enter into forwand foreign currency excharge contractd to hedge againit fanegn cumency exchange rate
risks on all or a portion of non-USD denominated imvestments or for efficient portfolio management purposes. When
erhifing itlo & forward fonsign ourfenoy exthange contract, the Furd agrees to neceive o delieer 8 ficed cquantity of
foreign cumency for an agreed-upon price on an agreed future date. These ontracts are valued dailly, and the Fund®s net
eouity thiersin, representing urreslized apprecistionf|deprecintion) on the contracts & medsured by the differance
betwoen the forwand foreign cunmency exchange rites at the dates of emtry imo the corfracts and the forward rates at the
repating Gabe, i included in thee Stabement of Adtes and Liabfities, Realize and unreslized ghins ard lostes are induded
in theStatement of Operations.,

Thiese irstruments irmaake market sk, oredil risk, or both binds of risks, in eaceds of the amount recogrined in the
Staternent of Asiits and tiabilities. Riskd srise from the possible inability of count evpa rties 1 meet the terms of their,
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019

SURBARAARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES | continued)
Forward Foreign Currency Exchange Controos (contineed)

cordracts and from: rovement in curfercy and secinities values and intenest rates. in addition 1o the class level hedgang,
the Furnd bad realized gains of USD 8,966,116 om 72 foeward fonkign ourfency exdhange contracts during the year with an
average rotional of USD 12,796,361 and an average term to maturity of 57 days, The Fund alsa had realized losses of LISD
927,019 or 36 forward Toreign cummency exchanpe contracts held o the Class JPY Hdged level dusing the pear with an
average notional of USD 34,193,382 and an average term to maturity of 69 days.

Carh oad Forengs Curiendy
Cash and foreign currency comprises ol ourrency held with Srown Brothers Harmiman & Cou, and owernight and other short
term placements with cther firarcal institutions.

Thie paet rsserts of the Fund se divided into [PY Class Linits ard USD Class Linits. The Units are denomninated i Lapanese Yen
ard United States Dollar, JPY Class Unils and USD Class Units ane available 1o an aligible dmestor who b5 any person,
carparation of entity which is ot (1] 8 citinen o resicent of the LS., o portnership ongariced or existing in the L5, o any
corparation, trust of other entity ceganized undier the laws of or exdsting in the US: (i} resident or domiciled in the Cayman
|slznds [pxduding any ohiject of a dharitable trust or power of an eeempted of nonresident Cayman klands company); (i)
unable to sukscribe for or hold Units withaut vislating applicable laws, of [/ a custodian, nominee, or trestee for any
person, conporation or entity described in (i) to (i) above,

The Manager may determine to ivsue one ormore classes of Urits of the Fund without prior notice 1o or written comsent of
the Unithelders.

All of the net asseis aiributable fo SY Class Unns and USD Class Units ane held by one Uritholder,

IFf Qass USD ass Total Fussid

Balance st Febouary 38, 2018 sl EROAnSiE  UsD BAIIRIM  LSD 150354088
Sl oy . i BN yrinae 3473050 AA4E1L173 13,960,313
Ridirmedion i durirg the ye (PAITRAZY) (ITOGLTLE) (41,426,580
Cestribations. Rl [P Reii ks ] {485,175
It dhisErgai i it dasirt rivting from dparatian 6.411.305] (53 1.648) [6.342,953)
M At 3t Felaey 78, 2040 LSO GLAMS077 LSO A79390,420 15D 11165A501
I o R by in iviesd ok Fabeuasy 20, LR 0T 5060414 6.RBIITL
L st during thae yide 100,095 436,058 530,152
Lirins rpdiemid dusing the yaar [FnEE) [1,6590,451) 12,961,935
Rumbsir of Units in iusue ok February 78, 2015 41514 4,400 SALLE1G
et Avaat Vidusy o Uit ot Fabeasy 39, 2009 LSO BEI1 USD I

Sarbierialions fov Uit

USD Dlass Units were first ssued at an anitial ssee price of USS 1000 per Unit. JPY Class Units wene first issued af an initial
e price of JPY 10,000 per Unit. On and after initial dosing day, the mirimem inktial subscription for USD Class Units per
subseribir i5 10 Uinits of mnode, and in reultiphes of 1 Unit thereafter, The mirienum initisl subscrption for JPY Class Units
per subscriber is 1 Urdt ormone, ard in multiples of 1 Units thereafier,

Th: Manager iray waive of change the mirsmum iritial and additira] subscripteon amounts sof forth abowe in its sole
discretion from tiene 1o time,

Sales Charge
In addition 1o the subsoription peice, the applicart shall pay a sales charge caloulated a1 wp to 3% (echoing any tax
applicable] of the purchase price, to the Distributor.

Uit Redemptions

The Furd recognizes redormplions in accordance with the authoritative guidance on distingudshing Habslities from ecuity,
Redemptions, whether expressed 2 United States Collar, Japanese Yen of Units, are recognized as liabilities when each of
the United Siates Dollar, lapanese Yer and Unit amounts requested in the redemption notice becomes fized, which
generally may oocwr either at the time of tha receipt of the potice, o on the last day of 3 fiscal year, depending on the
rature of the request. As a result, rederplions pasd after the erd of the year, bat based upon year and nel assets ane
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MEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
MOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019

LIMITS |continuad)
Ut Rerdempdions foomhinued)

reflected a3 redemptions payable at February 28, 2019, There were USD 431,056 of redemptions payable as at
Fisbsiary 28, 2019, included as Payable for Urits redeemed in the Statement of Assets and Lishdties,

Repurchase of Units

Each Urdtholder may recues! a repurchase of Units by the Fund unless repurchases hive been susperdied by the Manager,
Units wall be repurchased daily a1 the Net Asset Vahue per Undt as at the relevant Bepurchase Day (mach Valuation Day, or
such other diy or days 25 the Manager rmay from tme to time determing in respect of the Series Trust), There will be no
repurchase charge on repurchases of Urits held over five years,

Compadsory Hedempt ion

In the ewerd that the Trushes or the Manager thall detenmme that any Units of any Class of & Sered Trust ane being held by
o for thie benefit of 8 peron whd is not an Eligible invistor fof such Sefies Trust of thet such holding would cause the
Truest cor the Sewies Truest o b reduined 1o negieter, be subject to tan o wiolate the bews of any jurisdiction, or if the Trustee
oo Bl M s has ceason to daul? the legitimacy of the touns of mdiies vied to furd the lubsaiglion of purchide of
such Units, or for whatever reason {which may not be dislosed by the Trstee or the Manager to Unitholders) that the
Trustee of the Manager consicers spprapriate 8 its sbaslute discredion having regand to the irerests of the Unitholderns of
the relevant Class or the Unitholders of the Series Trist ot 2 whols, then the Manager, after consultation with the Trustes,
by direc the holder therecd 1o sl {fubjsct 10 8he provitions desonbed below in the section hesdesd “Trarsfer of Uritd®)
such Units within 180 days and provide to the Trustee and the Manager evidenoe of such sale, failing which the Manager
vy ricieern sudh Linits

Ternminilion of (e Furnd
Upon terfrinatasn, thi Manager will reakice all thee assets of thie Fund, and after payirg out of fetairang adeauate provision
for all liabilities propery payable snd retsining provision far the costs of the termination, the Trustee shall distribute the
proceeds of that realizstion to the Unitholders proponicnstely to their respective interests in the Fund as ol the date of
termination of the Fund.

Dstnbudions fo Unilholders

The Marager may, it its sole discretion, declire distributions from Jume 2007, Distributions will be declired on each
Distrilnion Record Date ard caloulated on each Ex-Distribution Date, Cistriution Perod &5 8 perisd commencing from the
colerdar doy follewing the preceding Distribution Record Date sand ending on and induding the Distribution Record Dete,
Tha distributions will be pasd on the relevant Cistribution Fayment Date, provided that such amount (if any] declired with
respect to eadh Class of Urits shall orly be paid out of the Series Trust™s net income, realized and urresliced capital gains
ardd oy distributable funds of the Series Trust attributable to such Qlass of Units as determined by the Mans ger,

Tha declaration of divtributions to Unitholders reduces the Class Level hNet Asset Value per Uinit witheout ary comesponcing
dharge in the number of Cass Leve Units per Unitholder, This resolts in @ Unitholder™s aversll nvestment in the Furd
beang reduced. 0 addition, any cistributions during a year which ane in excess of the Fund's rel incresse in pet assets
resulbing from operations results n o podtion of the dntribution being retum of capital,

The amourd of distributions, if any, will be determined by the Marsger in s sole disaretion, and no represemation of
Rusranten is mace that a cistribution will be made in respect of each or any Distribution Period,

Capilabization

Thi Mt Asdet Velue per Urit is colodsted for each Dealing Day feach Yobuation Day, of such other day of days 8 the
Manager may Trom time to time detenrine in respect of the Seres Trust), by dividing the difference in value between the
Fund’s assets and labdlities {irchuding acorued fees and expenses of the Fund) by the numbaer of Units outstanding,

The Trust Deed stipulates that the number of Units to be issued in the Fund shall be unlimited 2 the Manager shall
determine 2nd shall be withcut par value,

DERIVATIVE FIMNANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Accounting $andards Codification 815-10-53 reguires dischosures about cefvarther instruments and hecging activities. it
reguires that the Fund disclose: a) how and why an erity wes deriative instruments, b) how derhatioe instnamants and
rmelated hedged items areaccourted for and ©) how cdervative instruments. and redated hedged fems affied an entity's
fanancial position, financial performance and cash flows,
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MNEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [continued)

Thir Fund trarsacts forwerd dervative instruments grimarily for hedging purposes with sach instrueent's primary risk
exposul @ being fonsign exchangs risk. The fofward foregn cutrency exchange contracts hsld by the Fund da nat quadily 83
hedges for accounting purposes under the recuirements of ASC 815 The fair vabue of these dedvative instruments is
included in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities with changes in fair valoe reflected a5 realized gairs/{loses) or net
change inurrealized apprecaation N depredation] on derivathves within the Statement of Operateons (Note 21

Th Fund may enter info an Imemational Swaps and Dervathee Assodation, Inc, Master Agreement ("I5DA Master
Agreement” ) with s courderparties in order to mitigate counterpenty rck. The 1504 Maiter Agresment is typically
negotiated by the Fund and i3 counerparties, contairing the bi-lrieral termns and conciions for all subseguent derbrative
trarsactions, The 504 Master Agreement olloes for the netting of all amounts owed to or due from counterparty into a
single nat paymnent if 2 credit svant of default should ocour,

Thee Fund has elected to not offset fair value recerables and payables for derivatioe cormtracts on the face of the Statement
of Astnts and Liabilities,

At Felbruary 28, 2009 the Fund had entened into the following cerbative assats by countonpanty net of ameunts avatable
for offset under & Master Betting Agresement {~MNAT] and met of any collateral recsived by the fund:

Derhvative Attett  Decheatives rioreash cash Het Rmourt of
Counterpany Subject to-a MNA  Svallabie for Oétoet Colleral Receved Collateral Receberd Deshuative esets’
Citibank KA s 21 ATINGD -usn -Ls0 -L50 PR
‘Godcmian Sacha 918,525 {591E,525) - - -
Skate Stret Bank And Trusk Do, bPE - - - LTE ]
Werpat Barking Conporation 111,688 {211,688) - - -
Total USD 1062832050 [1,000,718) UsD - Us0 -UsD 2108

At February 28, 1119 the Fund had enfered into the following derimtive: BabsSties by counterparty net of amounts available
for offset under 3 MNA and ne1 of any collateral pledged by the Fund:

Derbeative Dereativet Mon-cath Cath Bt umourt of

CountErpaty Lishiiie: Rallzbie for Offoet Collateral Pledged Coltateral Pledged Derbaative

Subjed t 3 MNA ulsbslizies'
[y Bty Harriman & Ta, Lisgs 1550L50 = LSl =50 —-ush 155
Goldman Sacha 2,392,078 {318,575) - - LATA K
oyl Bai of Can ada 4,573 - - - 4579
Wiarae Barking O i 130ATS |1L1.EER) x = BA07
Total usD 2,518,102 USD__ [1,030,213) USD ~ L0 - S0 14K7 829

b bt st mausls the rert ot secenvabin avabie fros the roontecpey n e momtof et

At February 28, 2018 the Fund had entened intd the fallawn g derivatines:

Rzt Derhathoes Uabdlity Dervatives
(Dl it SLA AT SLATEEA
Mt Aidtuntad fee 5 of Aiieti s af Aigsri bnd
Anstrarments Liabilities Location Falr Walue Liabilities Location Faidr Walus
Forward foragn curfandy  Undislpid sopresition W rirbined daprind Bkhan
eachang contracts. on forward foregn on forwand foreign
{Curroncy Rigk) Currny dahange s LOSLII?  curreviy sachanpe usn 7.518,102
ol SRS

The effect of derhvathve instruments on the Statement of Gperations for the year endied February 28, 3015

thange in Ureealioed
Leeation of e L] & ppreciption o
Detvathess bot dccounted Galnor (Lot} Galn or [Loas] [Degreciation] an
fior as Hedging Incruments  on Derivath on Dertvath irath
Wk rialipad [oma on forwear d foresgn
e 1ors g curnandy LY R Oy Pt SOTaty
Eachange cont i drang irunnealiped aognesarian (o siang
{Currensy Risk) o Srward Tor s gn curnendy escharge dontrads  USD BAS.047 LS (RO E11)
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MEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
MOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019

TARNAGEMENT FEES

This Mandgst it entiled to receive sut of the assets of the Series Trutt a mdnagerrend foe of 8 total of OLESH per BRfUem
{2305 per anrum in regpect of fee for the Manager and the Ireestment Manager and 0.35% per annum in respect of fee
fior the Subr-investmen Manager) of the Net Asdet Wolue actreed on, ard caloulsted &2 at, sach Yalustion Day and payabde
monthby in arriears. 10 addition, the Marager is alvo entitled 1o be redmibursed out of the assets of the Seres Trust for any
expended indurred by it in the proper performaence of its powers and duties 83 permitted urder the Master Trost Deed.
Guring the year ended February 28, 2019, the Manager carmed fees of USD 853,738 of which USD 56,183 iz still
outitanding a2 of February 28, 2009,

The Marsger will pay the fees of the Imaestment Merager out of its fems. The Irsestment Maragoer will pay a fee o the
Sybelimvestment Manager out of the foe recrdved by the imvestment Maragor.

CUSTODMAN AND SUB-ADMINIETRATOR'S FEES

Thee fund has a oustody and accoenting agreement with Srown Brothers Harmiman & Co. {the “Custocsan” and “Sub.
Adirimistrator”) for which the Custodian receives a fee caloulated and paid monthly based on total assets and tramsaction
i

The Cuttodian and Sub-Administratos is entitled to receive oot of the atsets of the Seried Trust an administration fee
finchuching trarfer agent fee) calculated based on the Net Asset Value &2 8t each Vahation Dey 81 the fllowirg anrual
rate

- 0.0E% ot (and incheditg) LSD 250 million;

- B07% up to (and inchading) USE SO8 million;

- 006 ower USD 500 millicn.

Such admanistration fee 4 payable morthly in arreers, and subgect to the franfmum annuel fee of LSD BI,000. in addition,
the Custodian #and Sub-Administrator it ako entitled to receive customary safckesping fees and transaction dharges. All
ot -of pocket expentes of the Cuttodisn snd Sub-Admiristrator shall #o be borme by the Serie Trust.

TRUSTEES FEES

The Trustee i entitled to recsive out of the suiets of the Seres Trust & combined fee at the rate of 0.015% per annum of
the Net Asset Vabue sccrued on, and cakolsted & ot, each Valuation Day and payeble semi-snoully B arreses, subject 1.8
minimum annual fee of WSS 15,000 During the yeor ended February 28, X019, the Trustes carmed fioes of USD 15,703, of
whiich USD 14,535 i4 still sutstanding o4 of February 28, 20119,

AGENT COMPANY'S FEES

Thi Agent Company i entitled o receivie out of the aviets of the Sedies Trust 8 fee ot the rate of D55 per anfum of the
Nt Asset Value secrued on, and caloulated as a2, each Valvation Dy and payable quanerly n arrears. Duning the year
ended February 28, 3019, the Agont Company earned fees of USD 65,677, of whidh USD 9,804 i still outstanding o of
Fisksu afy 28, 2018,

HSTRIBUTOR'S FEES

The Distributor is entitled 1o receie out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee ot the rate of 0,655 per snnum of the Net
st Value acerued on, and celoulated os at, eadh Valuation Day and paysble quarterly in airears, During the yesr ended
Felbuary 28, 2019, the Distributer earmed fees of USD 853,797, of whizh USD 118352 i oill cutstencang as of
February 28, 2119,

QTHER FEES AND EXPENSES

Thi costs and sxparses in cornection with the establishrent of the Series Trust ard the offering of the Units, together
with the estabshment of the Trust, including the costs and expenses of prepading 2nd printing ary prospecius of
explanatody brodhunes required, ane estenated 1o amour to apiroximaltely USD 180,000, Sudh costs and expenses will be
amortized within the first five [S) firsncisl years of the Series Trust unbess the Trustes decdes that some other methad
shall be apphiec. The Ademirsstrator recenees USD 1,500 per annum for FATCA / CRS complance services,
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MEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
MOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019

FINANCIAL RISK PAANAGEMENT

The Fund's activities cxposs it 10 a variety of firendal risks: market fsk finducing price risk, interes rate risk, and curnency
risk}, eredit itk and Bauidisy fsk.

Marked Hisk
All ireestnents prasent 3 disk of boss of capital. Thir imvestment Manager moderates this risk thesugh 2 careful selection of
securiting and other firencial instruments,

The Fund's imaestment management process is described in Note 1. The primery determinant of the Fund's ability to meet
its chiecthe of mid 1o long tenm capital appreclation while earning income is dependent of the perfoemance of the
imuestmert in the Underlying Fund.

The Fund's investment management process s described B dote 1, The Fund’s overall market positions are moritored on
i caily b by the Fund's Imaestment Manager.

The walue of the fund's imasstments is affected by a number of factors, induding but not limited to, changes in the wider
economy, finandal and ourrency markets, forelgn currency exchange rates, interest @ie rmovemenis and the oedit ratings
of debt istuers,

The Fund may enter into forsard foreign currency exchange contracts which o varying degrees represent a market risk in
eapsd of the amount reflacted on the Funds Stefement of Atsets snd Lishilitisl. The rational amourt of the ot
represents the extent of the Fund's participation in these finandal invtruments, Market nitks associated with such contracts
orise due to the posdble maverments in foreign exdhange retes urderlying theseins truments.

rther market and oredit dtks inchude the posability that there sy be an iliquid market for the contracts, that the change
in the valye of the contract may not direcily commelate with changes in the value of the underlying ourrendies or that the
counterparty to o forward contrect defaults on its obligtion to perform under the tems of the contesc. The Fund's
exposul e 1o lass due 1o courterparty non-performance on open forwands Toreign currency exchamge contracts is limited to
the urrealined apprecistion inbesert in such finandal imstruments which are recogrized in the Statement of Assets and
Lighwlities.

Interesr Rate Rk

The Furd’s exposune to changes in interest rates relates primarnily 1o the Fund's imestrents in debt seourities contracts.
Ittt Fite flucbudtion § miy 3o afed the faer value and pricen g of dermritned indtiements puidhided oF wold shart by the
Fund. The rvestment Manager continuoudy monitors the Fund's exposure o interest rate risk and the Fund’s owerall
intenesd sersitity on a regular basis.

Crodil Hisk

Credit risk represonts the potential lads that the fund would incur i the coumenparies of Bwers of debt securities faded
to perinam prrsiant to the terms of thelr obligations tothe Fund For exchange fraded comrsts, the exchange acts as the
counterparty fo spedfic transactions and, therefore, bears the risk of delivery to and from counterparties of specific
posithons, The Fund’s management does not consider that credit risk refated to open derfeative contracts willl hive material
acwerse efinct on the firandal cordition of the fund,

While both the LS. Barkrupicy Code arsd the Securities imvesior Frofection Act of 1920 seck to protect customer propeny
in the evert of a failure, imclvency or lcuigation of an imstitution, there is no certainty that, in the event of a fallure of n
institution that has custody of Fund assetsy, the Fund would not inour lesses due £o its a3sets being unevailable for a period
of thne, ultimatedy bess than full recovery of its assets, or both, Becouse ol of the Fund’s cash b in custody with 2 single
institution, such losses could be significant and could materially impair the ability of the Fund fo adbese it investment
irbjective. The Fund i subject 1o oredit fidk to the extent that this institution may be unablie to fullfill its cbligations to repay
Amounts g,
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MEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
MOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019

FINAMNCIAL RISK PAANAC EMENT {continued)

Liguidity Risk
Irwestors should be aware: that thevalue of Units might fall 25 well a5 rise. Irmasstment in the Fund irvolves 3 degree of nisk;
thexe con benog assurance that the Fund’s imvestrmer obgecibee will be achiraed,

Thi Furd Is esposed to dally repurchase of its Units bat managemern believes that the Fund has suffident resources 1o
meet the present and foresesable needs of its business operations and, I necessary, the Bquidity to fund repurchases and
achiewe a markel position appeopriately reflecting a smaller capital bise. This positeon by moniioned cominually by
maragament (o ensune that the Fund has the ability to mest its obligations.

At February 28, 2019, substantially all the imvestrments of the Fund were traded in the over-the counter market.

Currency Aisk

The Furd primarily bolds imestments denominated in USD, whidh is the fund's fundtional and presentational currency.
Howesver, the Fund expects 1o hecge Japanese Yen, the vabue of the Fund’s net assets attributable to 2% Class, A5 a resul,
the: Fund will intur gains ovies on its forward foreign curmency exchange cortracts which are used to hedge the 1Y Oass
net assts to lapanese Yen, and such galrsflosses ane Tully allocated to JPY Class. All such bedging gainsAosses have been
reflected in the total retums a5 preserted in the Finandal Highlights.

The investment Mansger monitors the Fund's cummency exposune on a daily basis.
CONANMITIAR NTS AND COMTINGENCIES

In the normal cowrse of business, the Trustes on behalf of the Fund may enter into contracts that contain a variety of
representationt snd warranties and which provide general indemnifications. The general indemnification apply not only
to the extent such regresertations and wamanties are weirue but abo may cower third parties such as the Fund's
Adrrimistrator, Auditor o Irmeestment Manager for claims related to the sendces performed for the Fund. The Trustes's
masmem exposune Lnder any such amangements is unkrown, as oxposune ondy anises to the extent futune dafims that
hawe not yet oocunted sde made against the Tinfer. Howener, bated on experiencs, the Trustee eogpects the risk of los to
b remote.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Mlana gesment performed & subsequent everds review upto June 28, 2009, which @ the dete the finandal statements were
available to be ivsuesd,

Effeetive March 1, 2019 through Jure 26, 2019, thede were subscrigiions of USD 1,174,845 and there were redemplions of
USD & 470,606 i redpect of Clast IBY Units. Thens were distributions of USD 657,640 in respect of Cliss JPY Linits.

Effective March 1, 2019 through Jure 26, 2018, thene were subscriptions of USD 286 835 snd thene were redemptions of
A0 6,479,525 i respect of Class LISD Units, There wine distributions of USD 522,585 in respect of Class USD Uinits,

Thisre are i DEler sigrificamt evers 1o report 3 they relae (o the Fund
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2018 28
NB
2018 28
138,920,452 142,884,181 15,401,486
1,088,039 117,280
1,123,823 1,118,636 120,578
969,159 104,466
1,747,935 188,410
3,438,554 370,642
41,618 4,486
634 68
151,288,756 16,307,415
331,213 35,701
155,371 16,747
74,305 8,009
49,768 5,364
49,129 5,296
17,712 1,909
11,952 1,288
243,723 26,271
1,499 162
934,672 100,748
150,354,084 16,206,667
145,706,051 15,705,655
(607,380) (65.,469)
(1,917,843) (206,724)
7,173,256 773,205
150,354,084 16,206,667
9,393,871,563
910,907 10,313
62,318,176
5,969,414 10.44 1,125
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NB

2017 22 2018 28

3,700,848 398,914
3,700,848 398,914
607,575 65,491
607,575 65,491
205,093 22,107
49,129 5,296
46,737 5,038
17,712 1,909
11,807 1,273
3,841 414
58,665 6,324
1,608,134 173,341
2,092,714 225,574
3,860,324 416,104
(5,778,167) (622,829)
(1,917,843) (206,724)
3,963,729 427,250
3,209,527 345,955
7,173,256 773,205
5,255,413 566,481
7,348,127 792,055
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6,550,758

107,794
581,344
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2,092,714 225,574
(1,917,843) (206,724)
7,173,256 773,205
7,348,127 792,055
(1,411,827) (152,181)
(1,288,267) (138,862)
(2,700,094) (291,043)
93,987,292 10,130,890
67,978,316 7,327,383
(10,118,148) (1,090,635)
(6,141,409) (661,982)
145,706,051 15,705,655
150,354,084 16,206,667
150,354,084 16,206,667
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NB
2017 22 2018 28
NB
2016 12 16
2012 10 15
2009 a CIMA
2017 22
LLC
CIBC
UFJ PB
FASB ASC

946

GAAP
GAAP
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GAAP

2018 28
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50

2018 28
142,884,181 142,884,181
3,438,554 3,438,554
146,322,735 146,322,735
2018 28
243,723 243,723
243,723 243,723
FASB ASC 740
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41 13,187,551 57 6,317,061
24
18,804,906 69 384,461

)
)
)
() ) )

93,987,292 67,978,316 161,965,608
(10,118,148)  (6,141,409) (16,259,557)
(1,411,827)  (1,288,267)  (2,700,094)

5,578,591 1,769,536 7,348,127
2018 28 88,035,908 62,318,176 150,354,084
1,018,701 6,550,758 7,569,459
(107,794) (581,344) (689,138)
2018 28 910,907 5,969,414 6,880,321
2018 28 96.65 10.44
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10.00
10,000
10

2018 28
2018 28 331,213

10

2017
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ASC  815-10-50

a b
c
ASC 815
ISDA 1SDA
1SDA
2018 28 MNA
MNA
(O]

Citibank NA 3,052,609 (18,008) 3,034,601
Goldman Sachs 286,474 (79,607) 206,867
Royal Bank of Canada 47 47
State Street Bank And Trust Co. 5,535 (603) 4,932

Westpac Banking Corporation 93,889 (93,889)
3,438,554 (192,107) 3,246,447

2018 28 MNA
MNA
(©)

Citibank NA 18,008 (18,008)

Goldman Sachs 79,607 (79,607)

State Street Bank And Trust Co. 603 (603)
Westpac Banking Corporation 145,505 (93,889) 51,615
243,723 (192,107) 51,615

@
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2018 28
3,438,554 243,723
2018 28
(5,932,600) 3,194,831
0.65
0.30 0.35
2018 28
607,575 2018 28 74,305
0.08 2.5
0.07 2.5
0.06
80,000
0.015
15,000 2018
28 17,712 2018 28 17,712
0.05
2018 28 46,737
2018 28 11,952
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2018 28
12
13
2018 20
2018 2018 18
10,122,828
2018 2018 18
5,097,538
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

February 28, 2018

{Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)
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Ajigin:

Irwestmees in eounties, a1 valee (cost of LSD 136,920,453}

Cash

Forelgn curnency, at valae joos; of USD 1,123, 833)

Pt el B T ol i

ImtnrRat tacktiabie

Weneallzed 2ppeeciation on Forwand foesign qurrency eechange coniracs
Prepaid assats

CEnar xssats

Tetal Bawts

Lialyiiies:

Payabhe fof unils iedepamad

Accrued dintribito's fees

Acongd management fees

Accrmaed custodian and adrministrator’s fees
Aronasd professionad fees

Acttrabd ruitees feee

Acreiare Bgend company’s Teds

\rmpgliced depeociation on fprward formgn cuTency pechange covtracts
Other | ahilit e

Tota! Falalvios

Mt Agsels AttrEbutabla to Unithalders

Anabpil of Net dsieti:

Faidin capital

Arcuirmigated distri botions v secets of ret investment noome

acoumisfated net reafized losses on investments and Toeeign currercy Sransactions and Borwaed
Faneign curresy exchange confracts

meel unrepined Sprecilion on investments. and faegn curendy Transacions and Epraded foreagn
CuneBncy BRCRANGE Eantracts

Nt Assets Attributable to Unitholdaers

Nt Asset Valoe per Una
[P Class 7 5,393 871563 - 510,907 Units outstanding)
(U0 Chasa USDO62 318,176 — £ 989,414 Units outstand ng}

usn 142,584,180
1,084,039

1,118,626

950,159

1,747,935

3,438,554

41,618

B4

151,284,756

331,233
155,372
4,505
49,768
45,129
LTI
11,852
243,713
1,459

a34,672
LS 150,354,084

EL] 145, 706,051
(8072800
{1,517, 843)

7,173,356
LD 150.458,084

i 10,313

The accomparying rotes are an integral part of these firanoal statements.
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For the period fram February 22, 2017 (Commencement of Operations) threugh February 28, 2018

[Expressed in United States Dallar)

Imwzsiemant | noomes:
Ingeresl
Total It Inceme

Evpenses:
Managerment fees
Ciisbribotcn’s T
Cratcedan aned adminisbrator's tees
Professional loas
Agerit company's lees
Trustees fees
Transfer aent fees
Registration fees
Other expendos

Tots| Expenies

Mt |rveairsenl Income

Realived and Unrealized Gabee [Locces):
Realized gains/{losses)
Investmends in securtus
Fanegn cunrenty trandsact ioas and fareard fangign oun ey eschingl ConLrats
Nt realimed [y
Chargs In weaealiznd appreciation/{depreciation]
ISt mends in secunties
Foreign curmency transactions and foraasd farelign cunrency endhinge conirscts
MNet chanps in parealized apprecation
Ml realined and anrealTed gairs

Mt increase by net #sets resulling from o pemtions

1860324
5,778,167}
1.917.843)

L.963.729

1200527
LITEISE

£ IEE 413

uso 7,188,127

The accompanying notes are sn nlegral part of these financial statements.
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For the period from February 22, 2017 (Commencement of Operatiens) through February 28, 2018

(Expressed in United States Dollar)

Imcreise [Decreasa] in Nat Avsats from:

Operatians:
Mt Tvettment income

Mt el oases

Pt changl in unvBallind 8 ppratation

Mt mErBNLE N Net AL FRALing Troem Operatices

Dishribationsg to Lisitholders:
2Py Class
Us0 Class

Total Chstrbutiong

Captal Transmctiond:

Uity s
SPY Class {1,018 751 Uinits)
USE Class |6 550, 728 Linies)

Unigs redeemed
2P Clase {107,704 Unrt)
USD Class 1581, 344 Ui}
Mt RErease W net JRETE resciting Tromm capital e i g

Total Indredsn in Net Asgits
Pt Ansets

Barginning cof pericd
End of period

ush 1091714
1.5 7.843)
T AT2256

7, EE 127

{1.431.827)
e {1ERIET)
{2, 700008}

93,967,292
T5TRILE

{10428.248]
6,141,805
i

s

150,354,084

The accompanying rotes are &n Imtegral part of these linancial statements,
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the period from February 22, 2017 (Commencement of Cperations) through February 28, 2018

ORGAMIZATION

MNEUS Corparate Hybrid Sscurities Fund (the “Furd®] is a series trust of the Nikko AM Offshore Funds, an open-ended unit
trust established by a supplemental trust deed dated December 16, 2016 jthe “Supplemental Trust Deed®], ender the laws
of the Cayman lslands, Mikko AM Mfshore Funds was established by a master truat deed dated October 15, 2012 (the
“Master Trust Deed”), under the laws of the Cayman Islands and ks licersed with the Cayman slands Monstary Autherity
pursuant to section 4(11{a} of the Mutual Funds Law (2005 Agvision). The Fund commenced apesations on Febouary 22,
2017,

The Fund's assets are managed on 8 day to day basis by Nikko AM Global Cayman Limaed [the “Manager”). Tne Marager
delegates imestrnent managernert dulies 1o Mikko Asset Management Co., L5d, (the “investment Manager™). The
kwestment Manager delegates imestment management duties o Neuberger Berman Investment Advisers LLE, (the “Sub-
Irwestment Manager™). The administrateon of the Fund is delegated to Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. [the “Custodian®
and "Sube-hdmanistrator”], a limited partnership organiced under the laws of the State of New York.

Thae irwestment objective of the Fund i 1o schieve a mid to long tesm total retumn throwugh incame and capital appreciation.
Thee Sevwes Truat shall mainly irvest in both irestment grade and ron-investment grade kyord securithes that are issued by
non-firarcial corporate issuers and hive been rated by either of Moody's, S&P or Fitch. The highest rating from all three of
these agencies shall be applied i each corporate hybrid security and the average rating of the portfelio shall be BEBB-/Raad
or abaene.

Corperate hybrd debt secunties are structuned instruments that combine both equity and fined Income charactesistics that
gerarally offer a means for issuers to barmow money from investors in return for interest payments. Such corporate iduers
mary umeiize hylrid debt for a vanety of measond, including bolstering their capital levels, lowering thelr weighted average
cost of capital. dhvers'fying thelr funding sources and managing credit ratings. Though terms and condilions hivne Becams
increasangly standandized, the specific characteristics of sach instrument {such as payment conditions, the ratio of debit and
equity-liks features, tine frames and applicalble rates] can vary,

The Series Trust may also wwest o foed and floating rate debt securities, including bonds, baued by governments and
goverrment relaled entities,

Derrvative Instruments wall be used for eificent portfalia rmanagement and/ar imvestment purposes only

The amuets of the Series Trust may be held in one or mone currencies, and the Serles Tnast will, in princigple, engage in
currincy hedging between the currency of denaminatisn of each Class (LS. Dollas for USD Class and Japanese Yen for JFY
Clags] and the curency of the investrnerts in the undedving portolio, prosdded, however, that such hedging for JFY Class
mary be performed thoough the ULS. Dollar.

Under the terms of the Supplemental Trust Deed and the Master Trust Deed, OBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman]
Limited [the “Trustee” and the “Administratas”) is named & Trustee of the Fund.

The Marager appoirted Mitsubishi UF] Margan Stasley PB Securities Ca., Ltd to act as Agent Company (the “Agent
Compary™) and the Manager appointed Misubaibi UF! Mergan mnlu,- P8 Securities Co., Ltd 1o act as Distributor (the
“Distributor”) of Units in Japan or such ather person or institution as ray be appolnted 4 distributer of the Seres Trust by
the Manager from time 1o time.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Furd is an Irvestment Cormpany that follews the accounting and reporting guidance in FASE Accounting Standards
Codification 946,

Uize of Estimates

The accompanying financial stalements hive been prepaned in sccordance with accounting principhes generally sccepted in
the United States of America {"U.5. GAAP). The preparation of financial statements in Acoondance with LLS, GAAP requires
the Fund's management to make extimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilives at the date of the financlal statements and the repodted amounts of
revenyes and expenses during the reparting period. Actual results, indluding the ltimate amourt realized upan the sale of
fair valued Irvestments, could differ froen those estimates gnd such differences may be significant.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the period from February 22, 2017 {Commencement of Operations) through February 28, 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued)

Bosis of Accouniing

Security and confractual transactiont are recorded on & trade/contract-tate basis. Interesl inoome is recorded on an
effective yield basis, net of any applicable withholding tax. Imterest expenze and other expenses are réconded on an soorusl
basis, Realized gadns and Insses from security tranzactions are computed on the basis of the sverage cost of the securities
sold or covered, Changes in the valution of investments are recorded in the Statement of Operations as unrealized
Appreciateon of depreciation,

Velurtion of investments

Bonds and other debt securities, including restricted securities (ether than short-term ob®gadons but including listed
isswes} ane fair valued at their last sabe price in the pancipal market in which such securities are normally treded, on the
basis of valuations turnished by @ pricing senvoe, use of which has been approved by the investment Marager, or if no sale
has occurred, the bid price on the vahaatian date a8 pravided by brakers who are market makers in the securities. All debt
secuities wilh less than 12 months to maturity date, in principle <hall be fair valoed using an smortized cost effected oy an
eftective wieid accomylated/amortization methad to their maturity date with adjustment: bated on comparison with
muarket prioes as regulned .

In ascardante with the autharitative guidance on fair value measurements ard disclosures under U5 GAAP, the Fund
disciours the fair valse of i3 investments i a hisrarchy that priontizes the Inputs o valuation techriques used 1o meadure
tha fair walee. The hierarchy gaes the highest priosty to valuations based upon unadjusted quated prices in Sctive marsets
for identecal assets or babilities (level 1 measurement] and the lowest priority ta valuations based upon urchsendable
inputs that are dgnificant to the waluation [Leved 3 maserements), The guidance establishes thres levels of the fair value
hierarchy as folicws:

®  Leved 1 - lmputs that eeflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for idenzical investrments that the Fund
s thee abihiby 0 access af the medtorerment date;

®  Level 2 = inputs other than guoted prices that are sigrificant and observable for the asset or llabifity either
darecthy or indirectly. including Inputs In markets that are not considened to be active;

*  Level 3~ Inputs that are significant and unobsenvable.

Inguts are used in apphing the varous valuation technigues and broadly refer to the assumations that market participants
use to make valuation declsans, including assumptions about risk, Inputs may Indude price information, spedfic and broad
crealt data, Hguidity statisties, and cther factars, A financial instrument’s level within the falr value hierarchy b5 based upon
the bowest level of any Input that i significant to the fair value measurement. However, the determination of what
constitules “ahservable” requires significant judgment by the Ivvestrment Manager, The Imvestment Manager considers
abservabie data to be market data which is readily svallable, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not
oroprietary, and provided by independart sources that are actively invalved In the relevant market. The categorization of a
financial instrument within the hierarchy i based upen the pricing ransparency of the instrument and does not recessarily
correspard (o the Imvestment Manager's perteved itk of that indtruesent.

I st ents whose values are based on the quoted market prices in active markes, and therefore classified withan Leve! 1,
would inchyde adeeely traded equlties, certain U5, governsrent and sovereign aallpﬁm. and édrtain mMomney miadet
secwrities. The Investment Manager would not adjust the quated price for such instruments, even in situations where the
Fund held a Brge position and a sale covld reascnably impact the quoted price.

Investrents that trade in markets that are not considered to be actve, but are valued based on quoted market prices,
dealer guolations of alternative pricing sources supported by chsenvable inputs are dassified wathin Level 2, These nclude
Ivestmerit-grade debt securities, shart-tenr imaestraerts and forward forelgn currency exchange conmacts. As Level 2
investments include positions that are not traded in active markets ardfor are subject 1o ransfer restrictions, valuations
ray be sdjusted to refiect illiquidity andfor nen-transferability, which are generally based on available market mdormation.

iwestmaents classified withia Lewvel 3 hawe significant unobservable inputs, a2 they would trade irfrequently. Level 3
Instrumests would include asser-backed securities and collateralized morigage obligations, As ohsercable prices are not
availabla figr those securities, the Fund woald use valuation techniques to derive the fair value,

The inputs or methedology used for valung securities are nol necessarily an indecathon of the risk assocated with investing
In thoe seourities
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
Far the period from February 22, 2017 (Commencement of Operations) through February 28, 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued)

Valuation of Investments {continued)

The fpdlcwing table presents the financial instruments carried on the Statement of Azsets and Liabilities by caption and by
lewel within the valuation hierarchy as of February 28, 2008 Further dassrfications of the financial nstruments are
presented in the Portlolic of Investrments. There were no movements between levels during the poriad,

Aznsty ot Fabr Valum Fadr Walue oy
Lavel 1 Level 2 Lewied Febiruary I8, 2018
Faed income Secuntses 1] - YD 12 EES 16T wEb = VR 141584051
Fareard Fofeign Currency
Eﬁ"l%{ﬂﬂ@ﬂi — 3.13-‘&:55—' = 3,438 554
Tatal uso - USD 146,322,735 uso = USE 146,312,738
LimBitima &% Fadr Valoe Fair Value at
Lewal 1 Level I Lewel 3 Fabruary I8, i
Foreard Foreign Curnency
Exchange Conbracts WED = LED PRkl Wso = i 443,71k
Tatal Ui = Ws0 Ian i LS50 = s 243,713
Forgign Currency Transiation

Assets and Nabilizhes held in cwrrencies other than United States Qollar (*USD" or the “Functicna’ Currency”™} are translated
to the Fumctional Currency at the rate aof exchange prevailing at the financial statement date. incoma and expenses are
transdated ot the rate of eaxchange prevading ai the dale en which the income or exaense is ircurred. Realized and
unrealized gains and lossed ansing on foreign currency transactions are included In the Statement of Operations in the
peeriad in which thany oocur.

The Fund does not isofate that portian of the results of aperations resulting from changes in foreign excharge rates on
irvestments frarm the Auctuationg arsing from changes in marcket prices of securities held. Such Muctuations are included
with the net realized and vnrealized gain or loss frgem investments,

Income Taxes

Linder the current laws of the Cayman [slands, there are no incomes, withholding, caprtal gains or other taxes payable by
the Fund, In certain junsdictions other than the Cayman Islands, foreign taxes may be withheld at source on dividends and
irterast received by the Fund, Capital gains derived by the Fund In such jurisdictions genera’ly will be exgmpt from forgign
ircoeme or withholding faxes at sounce, Thee Furd intends to conduct its affalrs such that it wil net be subject to Income tax
im any Jurisdiction. As a result, no prosision for income taxes has been made In the financlal statements. Unitholders may
Lee tawed on their proportionate share of the Fund’s 1ax basis inceme based on their individual circumstanses.

Thie Fund fallaws the authoritative guidance on accounting for ond dischopure of uncertainy in tax positicns (Fnancial
Accounting Standirds Board ("FASE™) - Accourting Standards Codification 740}, which requires the Manager tc cetermine
whether a tax patition of the Fund is mare likely than not to be sustasned upan examination by the applicable tawng
authority, ncluding resolution of any related appeals or ldigation processes. based on the technical rerits of the pasition.
For tax poditions meeting the mane kkely than not threshold, the tax benefit recognized in the financial statements i
reduced by the brgest benelit that has a greater than fifty percent ikelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement
with the relgvant taxing authority, The Manager has determined that there is minmal or no effect on the financial
siaterments Deing wnder this authoritatree guidance.

Forward Fareign Currency Exchange Coatracts

The Fund rmay enter inte forward foren currency exchange contracts to hedge againgt foreign curmency eachange rate
fidkd o0 all ar 3 portion of per-USD denaminated investments o for efficient pomfolio management purposes. When
entering nta & forsward foreign currenty exthange contract, the Fund agrees o receive or deliver 3 ficed quantity of
foreign currency for an agreed-apon price on an agreed future date. Thess eortracts are valued daily, and the Fund's net
equity thersin, representing unrealized appreciationf{depreciatien] on the contracts as measured by the difference
betwern the forward foceign currency exchange rates at the dates of entry into the contracss and the forward races st the
reporting date, is included in the Statement of Adiets and Liabilities. Realized ard unrealized gains and lasses are included
i the Ssatement of Operations.

These instrements invabee market sk, credit rsk, of both inds of rsks, in excess of the amount recognized n the
Staterment of Assels and Liabibtes. Risks arise from the possible inabidity of counterparties to meet the terms of their
contracts and from mavement in currency and securities values and interest rates. In addtion to the class level hedging.
the Fund had realized lasses of USD 6,317,061 on 41 forward foreign currenty exchange contracts duning the period with
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
Far the period fram February 22, 2017 [Commencement of Operations) through February 28, 2018

SUMBMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued)

Farword Foreign Currency Exchange Controcts (continued)

an averagn notional of USD 13,187,551 and an average term to maturity of 57 days. The Fund also had realived gaing of
USD 384,461 on 24 forward foreign currency exchange contracts heid at the Class MM Hedged level during the period with
an average noticnal of USD 18,804,906 and an average term to maturity of 59 days.

Cath and Faveign Curréncy
Caxh and foreign currency comprises all currency held with Brown Brothers Harriman & Co,, and overneghit and ather short
term placements with other firancial institutions.

UNITS

The net assets of the Fund are divided info JPY Class Units and LS00 Cass Units. The Units are denominaled u fapanese Yen
and Linited States Dosftar, [P¥ Class Units and USD Class Units are available to an eligible investor who b any perion,
corporation of entity which is not (1 a citreen or resident of the U5, 3 partnership organized or existing in the U5, or any
corparation, trust o other entity coganized undar the laws of or exdsting In the US; (i} resident or domiciled in the Cayman
Islands {exchuding amy object of a charitable trust or power or an cxempted er nercresident Cayman bslands company]; (1]
unable o subseribe for or hold Units without volating applicable laws, or {w] a custodian, nomiree, or trustes for any
BRSO, COTPOration or entily descnbed in i) 1o (1) above.

The Manager may determine Lo iviue one of more classes of Units of the Fund without pricr notice to or weitten consent of
the Unitholders.

Al of the AT assets altribatable to JPY Clads Units and USD Class Units are held by one Unithalder,

P Class UISE Class Tatal Fund
Balance at baganning of periad usp - ush - D -
Subacrignicns during the period 93,907,792 E7,978,316 151,965, 608
Regiprristions. dharing the poenad (10,118, 148) 16,141,405 (15,256,587
Cstributicons 1L411.827) {18826 12,700,004}
Nel ncrease nnet 359ets resulting from operations 5,5_{3_591 1,765 536 .....__FIT..‘EEE."‘_.
Met Acers at Febnary 26, 2018 USD  BHO35508 USD 562 3LEANG  USD 150354084
Nurnber of Undts in isiue ot begienng of perod - - -
Linitgs. issuad dhating the paripd 1018, 002 5,550, 758 7563 455
Uit redes med durisg the penind (167, 754) {581, 344) [680,138)
Mumber of Unis in issue ot Febreary I8, 1018 910,507 5,565,414 £ RRDE21
Mol st Valor per Usit at February I8, 1018 Liso BEAES  USD 1,44
Subscriptions for Units

W50 Class Units were first issued at an initial ssue price of USD 10,00 per inét. JFY Class Units were first iszsued at an initial
lssue price of JFY 10,000 per Uait. On and after indial closing day, the minsmum initlal subscripthon for USD Class Units per
subseriber s 10 Units or moere, 2nd in multiples of 1 Unit thereafber, The minkmwm initial subscription for 3P Class Undts
per sibecriber (s 1 Unit ar more, ard in multiples of 1 Units therealter,

The Manager may watve or change the minimem initiel and sddittonal subscraption amaunts sel forth alkove in i sole
discretion fram leme 1o tirme.

Sales Charge
In addétion to the subscription pnce, the applicant shall pay a sales charge caloulated a1 wp 10 3% (excuding any tax
applicable] of the purchase peice, 1o the Distributor,

Unit Redemptions

The Fund recagnizes redemptions in atcordance with the authoritative guidance on distenguishing liabilitees from equily,
Redemptions, whether expressed as United States Dollar, Japainese Yen or Unds, are recognized as habilities when each of
the Urited States Dollar, Japanese Yen and Unit amounts reg d in the redemplion notice becomes Taed, which
penerally may ooour either at the time of the receipt of the notice, or on the last day of & frucal year, depending om the
nature of the request. As a result, redemptions paid after the end of the period, bul based upon year end net assets are
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NEUEB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the period from February 22, 2017 (Commencement of Operations) through February 28, 2018

UNITS {continued)

Unit Redemptions [continwed)
reflected as redemptions payable at February 28, 2008, There were S0 331,213 of redemptions payable as at
Febrary 28, 10148, included a5 Payable for Units redeerned in the Statement of Assets and Liabelities,

Repurchase of Uity

Each Linithalder may reguest b repurchase of Units by the Fund uress repurchases have been suspended by the Manager.
Units will be repurchased day at the Net Asset Value per Unit a3 at the relevant Repurchase Day [mach Valuation Day, or
such gther day or days a4 the Manager may from time to time determine in respect of the Seres Trust), There will be no
repurchase change on repurchases of Units beld oves face years,

Compilsory Redemption

in the event that the Trustee or the Manager shall determine that any Units of ary Class of & Sedies Trust are being held by
or for the berefit of 2 person whe is net @n Eligible Investor for such Series Trust or that such halding would cause the
Trust or the Series Trust 2o be required to register, be subject o tax or viclate the laws of amy jurisdiction, or 1T the Trustes
ar the Manager has reason 1o ooubt the legitmacy of the source of monles used to fund the subseription or purchase of
such Units, or for whatever reason (which may not be dedosed by the Trustes or the Manager 1o Unitholders) that the
Trustee or the Mangager considers appropeiate at its absolute discretion baving regard te the Interests of the Unitholders of
the relevant Class or the Unitholders af the Series Trust as a whaole, then the Manager. afier consyitation with the Trustes,
may direct the bolder thereof to sell {subpect o the providions desenbed below in the sectipn headed “Transter of Units”]
such Urits within 10 days and provide to the Trustee and the Manager eviderce of such sale, faifing which the Manager
may redeem such Units,

Termination af the Fund
Upon termanation, the Manager will reallze all the assets of the Fund, and after paying sub or retalning sdequate provisian
Tor all llakilities properly payable and retaining provision foe the codts of the termination, the Trustee shall distribute the
procewds of thal realization te the Unitholders proportonately to thelr respective inerests in the Fund as of the date of
terménation of the Fund.

Drstribations fo Uaithaiders

The Manager may, In its sele discretion, declare distibutions from June 2017, Distributions will be declared on each
Distributian Recard Date and calculated on each Ex-Gistrabution Date. Distribution Period §s a period commending from the
calondar day fallowing the preceding Distribulion Record Oate and ending an and Including the Distribution Record Date.
The distributions will be paid on the relevant Distribution Payment Date, proviced that such amount {if any] dedared with
respect ta each Class of Units shall anly be paid own of the Series Trust's net income, rediced and unrealized capital gains
and any distributable funds of the Series Trust anributable to such Ciass of Units as detesmined by the Manager.

The declaratian of distributions to Unitholders reduces the Class Level Net Asset Value per Unit without any corresponding
change in the number of Class Level Units per Unitholder. This resulls it & Unitholder's overall investment in the Fund
being reduced. In addition, any distributions during a year which are in extest af the Fund's net increase n net assets
resulting from operations results in a portion of the distribution beirg return of capital.

The amownt of dstabutions, i any, will be determined by the Marsger in its 2ole diseretion, and no representadon ar
puarantes is made that a distribution will be made in respect of mach or ary Ratribution Perlad.

Copitaiirotian

The Met Asset Value per Unit is caleulated for each Dealng Day (each Valuaticn Day, or such other day or days as the
Manager may from Uime 1o time determane in respect of the Series Trust), by dividng the difference in value between the
Fund's assets and liabdlities [ncluding accrued feps and expenses of the Fund) by the number of Units outstanding

The Trust Ceed stipulates that the number of Units 10 be Siued in the Fund shall be urtmited as the Marager shall
detenmine and shall be without par value.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Acoountirg Standards Codification B15-10-50 requires disc'asures about derivative instruments and hedging activities it
requires that the Fund disclose: a) how and wity an entity uses derivative instrumends, b) how denvative instruments and
relzted hedged items are accounted for and ) bow derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entity™s
financlal pasition, financial performance and cesh flows,
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NEUEB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the period from February 22, 2017 (Commencement of Operations) through February 28, 2018

DERIVATIVE AINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Fund tramsacts forward derbative instruments orimarity for hedging purpates with sach instrurmnent's primary risk
capaiure being forelgn exchange risk, The forward fareign currency exchange contracts held by the Fund de net quality as
hedges for accounting purpases under the requirements of ASC 815, The fair value of these dervatie instraments is
Incheded in the Statement of Assets and Linbalities with charges in foir vabue reflected as realived gains/ilosses) or net
charge in unreatized appreciation/[depreciation) on derivatves within the Staterment of Operations (Note 23,

The Furd may gnter imte an International Swaps and Dedvative Association, Inc Master Agresment {1504 Master
Agremment™) with it5 counterparties In order to mitigate counterpary risk. The 1SDA Master Agreament i bypically
reegotlated by the Fand and its courterparties, containing the bilateral terms and conditions for all subsegueent dervative
transactions. The (504 Master Agreement allows for the nesing of all amounts cwed to or due from counterparty into a
single net payment ifa cred't event or defaul; should cocur.

Thee Fund has elacted to not affset fair valee recelvables and payables for derbvathve contracts on the face of the Statement
of Assots and Liabihties,

At Feloruary 28, 2018 the Fumd had entered into the fallowing derivative assets by counterparty rat of amaunts available
for offuet under 8 Master Netting Agreement {“MMNA") and net of sny collateral received by the Fund:

Derivative Arset Derivatives Mon-cash Cash Mt Arvownt of
Counterparty Subject 8y & MNA _Avsilable for Offtsat € Raceived Coblitaral Received mmmg‘_
Citibank MA uED 1052605080 118, D] uSo =ush =Lish 1,004 801
Goldmah Sachs 86 AT {79,607 - - I0ERAT
Reval Bank ot Canada ar - - = &T
State Street Rank And Trust Co 5,535 {e03) - - 4,937
Westpar Banking Covporation 43,849 o B8] - - -
Tatal usn 3438554080 {192,107 USD - s - LISD 3,245,447

At Febouary 18, 2018 the Fund hac entered into the fellowing deswvative liabilities by counterparty net of amounts available
Tor offset under @ MNA and ret of any collateral pledged by the Fund:

Deediwati 1D N h Cash Mt Amasunt of

Cownterparty Liabiftios Avaiable for Odfeet Collpteral Pledped  Collapersl Pledged Derlvative

Subject o 2 MNA Liabiltes*
Citiban KA [T 18, 602050 118,008] USD ) =L -
Goldren Sachs TEEDT 15T - = =
Srate htreet Bani and Trust Co. 603 ) e - =
Wikt pal Basking Codparation 145,505 193.553] - - 31,645
Total Usb aa37330s0_ [1s2107 030 —wp wo 51
1 Wt amoent equals 150 nes smount 2/ parpaaie drom the bty i ERe pvend of dpfait

At February 28, 2048 the Furd had entered into the foliowing derivatives:

Angal Darivitian Lishility Dedivatives
Cuariwatives. Staternemt fRatemant
Mot Accourted for as of Assety and af Asaett and
Hedging Instruments  Liabifities Location Fair Valwe Liabilithes Levation Fair Value
Foeward Toreign currancy  Urrealiced appiacaton Linreéal rad diprecistion
eackarge contrscs on farward foreign an ferward foreign
{Carrency Ry oarrency exbange s JAIETH curnindy excthange (1] 243,723
oY Ll v

The eftect of derbvative instruments on the Statement of Dperaticns for the period ended February 28, 2018

Changs in Uniealized
Loeation of Riealined Apgeecistion oF
Daebvathves Not Accourted  Garinoor [Loss} Gain or {Loas) |Degprecation] an
ior as Hedging Imtraments  on Derbvatives on Devivatives Derivatives
et tealiced lods o orwaid foreigh
Forwarns Soneign currency cuerency suchange centracty,
eArharge contbiacts changs in undealized sppreciation [depregiation)
{Currency Risk] on forward foreign cumendy exchange contracts  Lsm (5.932,6000  UsD 3,154,531
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MEUB CORPDRATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the period from February 22, 2017 [Commencement of Operations) through February 28, 2018

MANAGEMENT FEES

Thie Manages i entithed to receive out of the assets of the Serles Trust & management fee of a total of 0UBS% per annum
10.30F% per annuem in respect of fee for the Manager and the frvestroent Manager and 0.35% per annum in respect of fee
for the Sub-bnvestmant Managnr) of the Met Asset Value accrued on, and calculated as at, sach Valuation Day and payable
monthby in arreacs, In addition, the Manager Is also entitled to be reimbursed out of the suets of the Series Trust for any
expensos mcwrred oy it in the proper performance of its powers and dutles & permitbed under the Master Trust Deed.
ring the perod ended February 28, 201, the Manager carmed fews of USD 807575 of which LSD 74,305 is still
outstandeng a5 of February 28, 2018,

The Marager will pay the fees of the investment Manager cut of Hs Tees. The Investment Manager wall pay a fee to the
Sulr-lrvestment Manager cut of the fee received by the Investment Manager.

CUSTODIAN AND SUB-ADMIMNETRATOR'S FEES

The Fund has 8 custody and accounting sgreement with Brown Brothers Hamiman & Co. (the “Cuvtodian™ and “5ub-
Administratar”) for which the Quitodian receives & e caloulated and paid monthly besed on total assets and transaction
wolume.

The Custodian and Sub-Adminisratpr is entithed to receive out af the atssts of the Seres Trust an administration fee
{including transfer agent fee) calculated based an the Net Asset Value s a1t each Valuation Day st the fclowing annual
rates

= 0,08% wp ta fand including) LISD 250 millien;

- 0,07% up te fand inchuding) LSO 500 milliong

- 0.06% ever LS 500 million,

Such sdministraticn fee is peyable monthly in amears, and subject to the minkmem annual fee of USE 80,000, In addition,
the Custedian and Sub-Adminstrator s also entitled to receive custemanry sefekenping fees and transaction charges. All
oul-of-pocket copenses of the Costadian and Sub-Admanistrator shall also be borme by the Serles Trust.

TRUSTEES FEES

The Trustee is entitied ta receive out of the assets of the Seres Trust 8 combined fee at the rate of S.015% per anaum of
thie Met Aseet Value acerued on, and caloulated as at each Valuation Day and peyable quarterly in arrears, subject to 2
minimum annual fee of USD 15,000, During the period ended February 18, 2018, the Trustes sarned fees of US0 17,712, of
which LIS 17,712 is still outstanding ad of February 28, 2018.

AGENT COMPANYS FEES

The Agent Company is entizled 1o recodas out of the asgets of the Serss Trust a fee at the rate aof 0.05% per anmwm of the
Het Asset Value accrued on, and caloalated a5 at, each Valuation Day and payable quarterly in arrears. During the pesiod
erded February 18, 2018, the Agent Company carmed foes of USD 45737, of which USD 11,952 15 &ill swstanding as of
Febriary 28, 2018,

DISTRIBUTOR"S FEES

The Diswibutor is entitied 1o receive out of the assets of the Sedes Trust a fee at the rate of 0.65% per annum of the Net
Asset Valoe accrued an, and calculated as at, each Valuation Day and payable guarterdy in arcears. During the period ended
February 28, 2018, the Distribulor earned fees of USD 607575, of which USD 155,371 &5 sl cutstanding as of
February 28, 2018,

OTHER FEES AND EXPENSES

The costs and expenses in connection with the establishment of the Series Trust and the offering of the Units, together
with the estatlshment of the Trast, inchuding the costs and expenses of preparing and printing any prospecius ar
explaratony brochures requined, are estimated to amount to approsdmately USD 180,000, Such costs and sxpenses will be
amortived within the first five (5] financeal years af the Series Trust unbess the Trustes decides that some other method
shall be applied. The Administrator receives L5D 1,500 per annurm fer FATCA f CRS compliance services.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the period from February 22, 2017 (Commencement of Operations) through February 28, 2018

FINANCIAL RISX MANAGEMENT

The Fund®s activities expose i to a variety of financial risks: market risk {including price risk, interest rate risk, and currency
risk], credit risk and liquidity risk.

Market Risk
All irdestments present a risk of lods of eapital. The Investrment Mansger moderates this rise through a casefil selection of
securities and ather financial instruments,

Thes Furd"s ivastment managemeant procass is deseribed in Note 1. The primary detereinant of the Fund's sbiliey ta meat
Its objective of mid 1o long term capital agpreciation white carring income is dependent of the performance of the
imvestment in the Underdying Fund.,

The Furalls imeestment management prooess s desoribed in Noge 1. The Fund's ovarall market pasitiors are moritoned on
a daily bas!s by the Fund's Investrent Manages,

The value of the Furdd's investrments is aflected by a number of factors, mcleding but not lmited to, changes in the wider
ecanomy, fmancial and cusrency markets, foreign cufrency exchange rates, intedest mle movements and the credit ratings
of debt Bawers,

The Fund may enter Into forward foreign currency exchange cortracts which 1o varying degrees represent & market risk in
eacess of the amount reflected on the Fund's Statement of Assets and Labilities. The notional amount of the conlract
represents the extent of the Fund's participation in these financial instruments. Market risks associated with such contracts
arise due to the possible movements in foreign exchange rates underbying these instrurments.

Other market and credt risks include the possibiiity that there may be an illiguid market for the contracts, that the change
In the value of the contracs may nat directly correlate with changes in the valee of the underbying currencies or that the
counterparty to a forward contract defaults on its obligetion 1o perform under the terms of the contract. The Fund's
exposure to loss due to counterparty ron-performance on gpen foraards foneign cumency excharge contracts is limited to
the urrealied appreciation inherent in such financial instruments which are secogrized in the Statement of Assets and
Liabilities,

Interest Rote Risk

The Fund's exposune 1o changes in interest rates relates primasily to the Fund’s ivestments in debt securitlies contracts.,
Iriterest rate fluctuations may also sHect the fair value and pricing of derivative instrements purchased or sokd short by the
Fumd. The Irvestment Manager continsousdy monitors the Fund's exposuse Lo inlerest rate risk and the Fund’s overall
interest sEasitivity on a regular basis,

Credit Risk

Credit risk represents the petential loss that the Fund would incur (F the counterparties or Issuers of debt securities falled
ta perform pursuant o the terms of their sbligations ta the Fund. For excharge-traded conacts, the exchangs acts as the
sounterparty to specific tramsactions ard, therefore, bears the risk of delivery to and from counterparties of specific
positiond. The Fund®s ranagemant daes not consider that credit risk related to open derivative contracts will have mazerial
adverse effect an the finsncal conditian of the Fund

While bath the LS, Bankeuptey Codie ard the Securities Investor Pratection et of 1970 teek to protect cuitamer property
in the event of a fallure, inzolency or liquidation of an institution, there is no certainty that, In the event of a fallure of an
iatibution that has custody of Fund assets, the Furd would not incur ioases due o its assets being unavailable Tor a penod
of time, ultimately less than full recovery of its assels, or both. Becawse all of the Fund's cash is in custody with & single
institwtion, such losses could be significant and could matera’ly impair the ability of the Furd to achiewr it irvestment
obpectve. The Fund is subject to credit risk 1o the extent that this institutesn may be unable to fulfill s obgations to repay
armounts cwed.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the period from February 22, 2017 {[Commencement of Operations) through February 28, 2018

FIMANCLAL RISK MANAGEMENT [continued)

Liquidity Risk
Imvestors should be aware that the value of Unfts might fall as well as rise. investment In the Fund invobves a degree of risk;
thaitrie 204 B Ay Bekdaitaroe that the Fund's inve strment abjective will be sehiasd.

Thie Fund ks cxpased to daily repurchase of s Unis but management belleves that the Fund has sufficient rescurces to maet
the present and foreseeable needs of ts business operations and, il necessary, the liquidity to fund repuschases and achieve &
market pasitian appropristety reflecting a smaller capitad base. This position is monitered continuslly by management to ensure
that the Furd has the ability 1o mest it oblgations.

At February 28, 2018, substantially all the nvestments of the Fund were traded in the over-the-counter market

Currency Ritk

Thi Fund primarily holds imvestments derominated in LSO, which is the Fund's functiona’ and presentational curnency.
Howewar, the Fund sxpects to hedge Japanese Yen, the value of the Fund’s net assets attributable to JFY Class. As a result, the
Fumnd will intur gainglostes an its forward foreign currency exchange contracts which ane used to hedge the 1PY Chass net assets
to lapanese Yen, and such gaing/lasses are fully allacated to IPY Class. All such hedging grins/flosses have been reflected in the
Evtald refuims as presented in the Financial Highlignts.

The Imvestment Manager menitors the Fund's currency exposure on a daily basis,

COMMITMENTS AND COMTINGENCIES

In thy normal cpurse of busingss, the Truster on bethal! of the Fund may enter into contracts that contain & wariety of
representations and warranties dnd which provide peneral indemnifications, The general indemnifications apply not only 1o the
extant such reprosentations and warrantes are untrue bt also may cover thind parties such as the Fund's Admindstrator,
Auditor g krvestment Manager for claims related to the services performed for the Fund. The Trustee's masdmum exposure
under any fuch arangements is unknown, as exposure only arises to the extent hiure daimi that have not yet occurred are
madi agabnst the Trustes. However, based on eapéricnce, the Trustee expedts the risk of ks to b remobe.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management performed a subsequent events revlew up to July 20, 318, which 15 the date the financial satenents were
avalable 1o be jidukd.

Effective March 1, 2018 through July 18, 2018, there ware subscriptions of USD 8,543,484 and there were redemplbgns of
USD 10,122 828 in réspect of Class IPY Units. There were distributions of 1,030,083 in respect of Jass JPY Units.

EMective March 1, 2018 threugh July 18, 2018, there were subscriptions of USD 4,003,100 and there were redemptions of
USD 5,097,538 i respect of Class USD Unlts. There ware distributions of 905,960 in respect of Class USD Units.

Thegre are ndg other Significant evants B0 féport s thisy refate o the Fund.
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2019
208,586,879.68 22,483,579,761
101,157,734.69 10,903,792,222
107,429,144.99 11,579,787,538

4,074,991

701,697

10.41 1,122
9,981
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Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
MA02109-3661 40
40 Water Street Boston, MA02109-3661 U.S.A
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5,332

2019

11

14

268,270,936,327
988,350
2,841,482,611

90

116/178



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

131

2019 28
UFJ 107.79

117/178



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 31
2019 2018
3,938,928 424,577 2,282,080 245,985
3,190,108 343,862 4,264,282 459,647
71,250 7,680 71,250 7,680
7,200,286 776,119 6,617,612 713,312
7,200,286 776,119 6,617,612 713,312
146,480 15,789 185,000 19,941
124,271 13,395 107,593 11,597
2,462,391 265,421 3,623,292 390,555
2,733,142 294,605 3,915,885 422,093
480,000 2019 31
2018 31
480,000 480,000 51,739 480,000 51,739
3,987,144 429,774 2,221,727 239,480
4,467,144 481,513 2,701,727 291,219
7,200,286 776,119 6,617,612 713,312
17 2019
129332

118/178



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 31
2019 2018
3,938,928 424,577 2,282,080 245,985
3,190,108 343,862 4,264,282 459,647
71,250 7,680 71,250 7,680
7,200,286 776,119 6,617,612 713,312
1 0.108 1 0.108
1 0.108 1 0.108
7,200,287 776,119 6,617,613 713,313
146,480 15,789 185,000 19,941
124,271 13,395 107,593 11,597
2,462,391 265,421 3,623,292 390,555
2,733,142 294,605 3,915,885 422,093
480,000 2019 31
2018 31
480,000 480,000 51,739 480,000 51,739
3,987,145 429,774 2,221,728 239,480
4,467,145 481,514 2,701,728 291,219
7,200,287 776,119 6,617,613 713,313
17 2019
129332
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2019 31
2019 2018
22,335,065 2,407,497 28,757,335 3,099,753
22,335,065 2,407,497 28,757,335 3,099,753
(1,276,979) (137,646) (1,383,168) (149,092)

(19,056,557)  (2,054,106) (25,366,385)  (2,734,243)
(20,971) (2,260) (18,121) (1,953)
(161,343) (17,391) (247,668) (26,696)
(20,515,850)  (2,211,403) (27,015,342)  (2,911,984)

1,819,215 196,093 1,741,993 187,769
(53,798) (5,799) 63,803 6,877
(53,798) (5,799) 63,803 6,877

1,765,417 190,294 1,805,796 194,647

1,765,417 190,294 1,805,796 194,647

1,765,417 190,294 1,805,796 194,647
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2019 31
¢ > C > C > « ¢ > C )
480,000 51,739 1,415,931 152,623 1,895,931 204,362
1,805,796 194,647 1,805,796 194,647
(1,000,000)  (107,790)  (1,000,000) (107,790)
31 480,000 51,739 2,221,727 239,480 2,701,727 291,219
1,765,417 190,294 1,765,417 190,294
31 480,000 51,739 3,987,144 429,774 4,467,144 481,513
2019 31
2019 2018
1,819,215 196,003 1,741,993 187,769
(53,798) (5,799) 63,803 6,877
1,765,417 190,294 1,805,796 194,647
1,074,174 115,785 (2,374,066) (255,901)
(1,182,743) (127,488) 2,208,357 238,039
1,656,848 178,592 1,640,087 176,785
(1,000, 000) (107,790)
(1,000,000) (107,790)
1,656,848 178,592 640,087 68,995
2,282,080 245,985 1,641,993 176,990
3,938,928 424,577 2,282,080 245,985
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2019 31
309GT
EU
IFRS IFRS IFRIC
2019 31 IFRS
1ASB IFRIC EU
IFRS 1ASB
IFRIC
IFRS 16 2019
1ASB IFRS
2019 31 2018 31
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JPY GBP SGD
2019 31
2018 31 10
2019 2018
JPY 54,000 227,000
GBP 95,000 46,000
SGD 56,000 149,000
2019 31 2019
3,938,928 3,938,928
3,190,108 3,190,108
71,250 71,250
146,480 146,480
124,271 124,271
2,462,391 2,462,391
2018 31 2018
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2,282,080 2,282,080

4,264,282 4,264,282

71,250 71,250

185,000 185,000

107,593 107,593

3,623,292 3,623,292

2019 31 2019 31
2019 31 a
@ ®) ®)

) C C C
4,735,296 339,775
9,478,941 1,253,147
2,634,320 307,671
2,071,148 549,065
136,852 12,733
19,056,557 2,462,391

2018 31 2018 31
2018 31 a
@ ®) ®)

) C C C
8,480,224 2,231,327
10,465,491 792,235
3,643,329 223,129
2,605,050 204,310
172,291 172,291
25,366,385 3,623,292

(a
(b
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MIKKQ AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINARCIAL POSITION
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2,252,060
4754252
71,250

6517612

Gl T

133,000
1393
328

I FLEEES

AS AT 31 MARCH 2009
Nitie 209
Asses
Curred Assets
Cash and cath equivalends 4 3,938,908
Accots peckrrabibe 3,090, 108
Averibed monie shd prepaid erperEe 71,2530
Total Current Assets 7,200,286
“Total Non- Current Assets
Total Assets 3 7,200, 28
Limbilities nnd Equity
Currml Lishiliies
Accnaed epenes and deferred income H 144480
Accounts payabls 124271
Adroards payable bo group wedertalongs 3 246230
Toral Current Lish ibie 2, T4
Expuity
Capital and Beserves Attribugable i Equity
Hudders af the Compary

Ehare capatal {31 par value, 80,000 dares
wuthormed, $60,000 thares izrued and 43,000
autstandmg st 31 March 2019 and 201 8)

450,000

2221727

270117

Fatured sarnengs 3,907, Ja4
Total E.:'.lly o4 57 Tded
Total Labilithes and Equity b3 7,00, 286

6517612

The snexad nobes from 1 to 8 form an mitegral part of thess frmnol stabemants

The firarcial stateemerts of pages 8 to 17 ware spproved by weitten resolution of the Boaed of Directors on T Augast 2019 and

mathonsed for izwe and sgred on itx behalf by

ki
1)

Compamy regrsdened omber 125332
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The seeiezed piodes frorn 1 bo & forrm an ahbegral part of thess lranasl statemenis

The firarcial statemengs o page

MIKEQ AM CGLOBAL CAYMAN LTD

COMPARY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSTTION
ASAT 21 MARCH 200%

Asses

Currend Assets
Cush and cazh eqpavalents
Aok recaTable
Acorued imcomes and pregasd epanse

Toknl Current Assets

Nomn-Currmi Assets
b estrnent &1 mebasdisny
Total Non-Current Assets

Totnl Assets

LEabilities and Equity

Curras Lisbilkie
Aecapind expenses and defeered mooine
Ascimisks parable
Armorks prllr.\hbr b grop wuhhr:g
Total Current Lishithies

Equiy
Capital and Reserves Attributable to Equity
Hiokders of the Caempany

Share capial (31 par value, 450,000 e suthonzed,
&80, 000 thnes waked and cubstanding o 31 March
2015 and 2074)

Relamed earmings
Total Equity
Total Liabilites and Equity

sghonsed for 15ape and sigred on itz behalf by

K
]

Cocnpany repet ared manber: 129332

Nele

129/178

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2009 2008
393G 922 £ 2,282 (el
F 190002 4 2068 TH2
71250 TH 250
7200,28¢ 417,412
1 1
1 1
7200287 % 417613
JEEE VR 4 S 000
12827 Lo 593
2462391 1609390
2,733,142 3
45000 0000
3,987,144 2291758
45T 145 2,700, 7
7200287 % B617613

s 2 to 1T were oproved by written resolution of the Boerd of Directors on 2 Augudgt 2019 and
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KIKKQ AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 019

Note 2019 2018

Operating Revenues

Investment managemant and dvizory fees from thend parties § 2IN0 % 280nxs

Total cperating reverases 23335 085 18757333
Op erating Expenses

Sub-advizory fees with thaed parties (1. ITe 98 (1,383, 168)

Bub-advisory fees with group indertalong= & {12058 35T) (25,38 3855

Audd fess 20571 (1A

COther eperating and admunifiralare etpentes {161,343 (4T, 60550

Tetal operaling expames 20,51 5,550 (27,005,342
Operating Profit 1219215 1,741.5953
Other Tscoame | (Expenies)

Cther incomesexpense), Het forsign exchonge gunf(bos) (53,738 £3803

Total cther epenses (G110 63003
Froft Before Income Tax 1,765,417 1 808,706

Ireome tax expenst 4
Frofi artributatsle to squiy hokders of the parme 1, TR ALT 1 NS, TG

Gﬂncmumvehml'crﬂu?h' - =
Tatal Comiprehensive Incmme for the year 5 1785417 % 1,805,746

All the Group’ s cperivans are dasnfisd o contfuamng
The seriexed nobes from 1 b @ form an miegral part of thess francaal satements
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MIKEOQ AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 019
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Noke Plinoss < vima Teal
Ealance st 1 April 2007 - 30,000 £ 1415901 % 1,897 daq
Mt prod 1,005, 796 1 B05, 754
Davidend pasd = 1,000,000 [
Balanice 5t 31 March 2008 5 80,000 §  anT 5 2,701,727
Het profit - 1,765417 1, 765417
Doy idend pand - = -
Bakance 3 31 March 20019 5 30,000 5 AT 5 4.457,144

The anniemad fiobes from 1 bo & form an inbegral part of thess Granoal statemnents
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 019
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Kote xme 2B
Cah Flowes from Operating A ciivinies
Ciperating Profit - LE9215 1741950
Adfustamits for
Het foragn axdtange los {53 75 &3 80T
gﬁmml cish flows befom movements mworkng 1365 A1 120 7o
Changes in op eruting asets and Bab ilikkes
Elecrease | (inorease) m pecevables 1,004,174 (3,504, 0}
(Decrense) [ mereaze e payables (1,182,743 2208337
et Cash Cenerated from Operating A ivities 1,656 20 LT
Cash Flows from Financing Aot ities
Drvidends pard - 1,000,000 §
Met Cash Moo Financing Acotivigies - o, 0000y
Nt Inc rease in Cash and Cadh Equivalents 1,656 240 T
Cash md cash apavalmls, begming of the year 2 3a7 ey 184,593
Caih and Cash Equiivaliaits, End of the Yeas 5 008502 2282080

The acrieted nobes from 1 bo & form an obegral part of thess fnandal staternenie
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HIEEK® AM GLOBAL CAYMANLTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 201%

Mode 1 - General Inform ation

Hikhoo AR Hlobal Cayman Lid & the Company™) and £5 subsidary (bogether “the Group®) e incorpomted md domaaled = the
Cayrean Tlads The address of the registersd cffics is PO B 3090T, Uglind Houss, Bouth Chisrdh Strest, Grand Caynan,
Coyrran Eslands. The prevegel sctivities of the Group and Company durng the pear were the proveson of neestment sdvice and
mysirnent maragaTent sevites Lo tued parives and olfvr g memb et Thess: ponedabutony fmancial staterments have bean
prepared 1o a1 the preparation of consslsdated financial statements for the ibermedisle parent company

ote 2 - Summary of Signilcant Accoanting Principles
The principal mocounting polscies sdopted sme sof ot bel ow

Bl of preparatiom

The Growp and Company's inancal datementshavebem prepeed in sccordance with Intem sticend Fnonca] Reporting Standards
at adopled by the Evrcpean Unson (IFES: a: sdopbad by the EUD and IFRIC milepretabions apphicable W comparnes reporting
under IFRS. As st 31 bMarch 2009, the Comgany had adopted all IFR.Ss snd mberpretabions that had been isnsed by the Inbarmations|
Actoirtirg Racdirds Boand § LARE") and Dnbarmtviral Fiiancial Reporting Infapretabiond Camnntbes (0 TFRICT ), and endoried
by the EU. The accamnbng polscies s4 ol belowr hare been apphed consistently to all penods presmled m these fmancml
Aatemeenks IFRS: comgeist acoounting sandards izneed by the LASE and its prodecessor Body az well ar nterpretations izrued by
the IFRIC and it predecesior body

Bask of comsnlidation

B.bm!:-rsmuﬂusomh'ollndh}rﬁeﬂr\mp Cortrod exets when the Group his the powrer to govemn: the frumcial snd operating
pelicies of an mlly 0 a2 Lo ohtaen berfits from 2 scviles. In aseemimp ovntrol, the Orogp Lakves inbo consideration potertal
woting righls thet are corently exercizmble. The soquintion date & the dabe on which control is tresferred 1o the sogare The
[rnanesl satements of sibsidmnes e indloded inthe consolidated (mancial shibernents from the Sabe that control cornfreeoed
unlal the date thef condrol cexses Losses spplicable to the non-conbrolling interests m 2 sobadisery e allocated to the non-
controlhng mbereds eyven if dotng 56 causes the ponecontrollmg inberests 4o have o defial balarcs.

Seandards and terpreialions ERoed bat e et eTective
IFR.E 16 Lease Accambing is effective from 1 Jamuary 2015 The company has no leases o there is no effedt of the stindsrd o

the comgarty

Tew socount ing standards adopied
The LASE has iensed ceveral asandments to TFRS: that are [irst effectres for the cumant aoooumnbing peaod of the companry. Moo
of these davalopments Fachod & matenal wrpact to fhe company’s finencisl satemends

Measuremmt convention
The Gnancial staternares have been prepared under the hustoestal oot sonvenbion

- bmeatis st assimmplioas

The preparabion of firmncad shabernents redquires mansgement bo makee esterates ard assurnpbions thst affect the smourts reparted
for assets and lisbidibee az o the Balnce et dabe snd the amounts reported for revirnues and expemes during the year The rabore
of estrmabion mean s that sctual sutcornes could duffer from thoese etimates. The ssaampbions and estenates, which “-Eﬂ'l.'l.l'l.ll;\ﬂ.d:[
reviewad, are bazed on past experience and other factors, meluding expectations regarding likely developments m the fee AL
31 March 200% and 2019 there were no matenal estemates or spsumptions

Acceunts receivable

Accoizks peceivabile nclude amounts due for mansgement, sdviscey and performance fees ard emcumts due from casomerns and
others. Al asoounds recavabilas arerepayable on demand or snithin one year They are reconded i the balonce shest at cost, reduced
by appripnabe allowmnces for esimated mrecor ersble smousis, and they ore miterest baanng

Acceunts payable
Acoourts paysble nclude smounts dus for subsdviesony services d performmance fes and amounts dze o vandors smd ofvers

All sooks payable are classilied acconding o the subislance of the contractual arrargernent enbered inbo. They are payshle on
demand o srithen one pear and are recorded on the balance sheet of codt. Amonts owed to group undestakemgs are ursecured,
miberes e and hare no ficed Lermns of repayrnent

Cush and e equivalemis
Cash ard cashy sqaivalents comprise cash m banks and 1 band and shoriterm daposils with an ol matunty of three monlhs
o egr end foreign oorvencies hald by the Group and Coregany. Forthe n of Ut cash flowr statemnent, cash and cash
equralens consed of cash and cash equvalents as defried sbove, net of culdesdng back overdrafts

Operating revemies
Operalang pevernes includs commasmens aed iorestment managemnent, aevesment advizory and perfonmance fses Operating
revenizes are meatured ot the far valoe of the conndsration receved or momvable for 2aevices provsded m the nommal eourse of
busmness, net of disoourts, bras] feex, VAT and other sales relabed tones

[FRE 15, Feveroe from Cortracts with Customeers replaced LAS 18 Revense and mircduced 3 five deap spproach to revenioe
recogration: ) wentifymg the contract with Lhe custorner, o) identifieng e performance chligatrons, i} idenbily the contract price
| azpocisted revenioe; ) allocats the consederation bo the relevast performance chligations, and v) recognisng the revavae as the
perfonmance chligalons are mtizfied
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HIEEK® AM GLOBAL CAYMANLTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 201%

The Company has spplied IFRE 15 refrospeciirely, bt e deemined that there &5 no admusiment to the rétasned esmangz as ot |
Agril 2018 Comparative informalion has not been affected and tharefors no restaternent i regquared | The Conpany has urrdertaloen
areview of £2 condracts with customers and eoncladed that there i po srpadt on the way in wiidh d recognates £5 reveriaes ut o
elemenit ol 25 revenwe relies on estimates or 15 subject to reversal or significant restaberment

Cormmissions and mvestment mans gament xnd advisory fees and sescciated charges are recogrised when the services concesmed
arererdered I estrnent managemnent and advasory fees are caloulabed a2 a percentages of ases under management Cormrozions
wrerocogri pid on & ade dade baser, caloulabed onoa percentage of the sale Performanics fees are recognuaed n the pencd @ which
ey b doe and collectable

Operating eqpemses
Crperating expenses are pocounted For when they become payabls

Dol bemls
Equity dmsdends to the sharcholder of the Group are recognized a5 3 lisbility o the pervod durng whach they wre declaned and
approved.

Forelgn currencles
The fanctiona] snd presendatsonal corrency of the Group and Congany o U5 dollars (5

Trarsadions m curances other than U8 dellars are recorded af the rabes of exchange prevnlng oo the dates of the rensachons
Al exch halance shest date, monetany azeets and Twbihives that sre denomemated 1o forsign curmencies ape retransisted of the miex
peerailing on the balanos dhest date Mon-menetay st and labilfae comed o far vahes that ase daominated i forsign
aarencies e tran dated of the mies prevadling ot the dabe when fr value was debermmed Gams end |osses arising on refmnstation
ﬁwwmmmm«hﬂ[wwpmﬂw fer exchinge differances arang on nea-ronetary sseds and [abalities wheese
the changes in fur vabos are recognized directly m equity

Fiar fal insdrumemts

[FR.% ¥, Financial Insteusmends replaced theclassification s d meanmemant contamed i 1AS 39 Finsncial Ingruments: Recognition
acd Meamirernent (LAS 35 In acooandance with IFRS #, the Company™s fnamcial asssts have been reclasafed sl amcrticsd cost,
far walue teough other comgedvnsme income o e value theough peofit o loss The Comgany haz spplied IFRE ¥

retrospactivaty, with the misenton of nduding sy requirsd adpustment bo retamed mmngs o ot 1 Aprd 2012 Comparative
wfirration P et e festa bad

The vt majorty of the Company's Enancial ssdrumees ore cash and recervables which ane messored af smertised cogt

Folloswring the Company's sdopion of IFRE % on 1 Aprl 2018 the Company his svalusted potenial el losses on all fmancial
acessts ol ares irasiared o ammortzsed cost Fadors contidaad o debermmnmg whther a defuis® e Liesly of pocsib b rcliade whather
& payrnent i3 ovendue (and the bength of that peried), sy knosm deterioration i e credit quality of a clisntioountenpasty o other
tzaes that ooeald wdversely affect o clent’s'ocounbaparty’s credid qualdy

Fer financial assets whers there & neo known saes aflecting credit quality, expected cred osnes ape caleulabed based on the logees
that are expacted b be meourred over o rollmg twelveamonth paod Green the nature of Ehe Company s financial atzets 1o mostly
cash st bark), there = a very low oredit risk The Company o aleo consmdering the vee of money market funds 1o neorege
diversficabion and further reduce credit nisk

Fer any firarsa] asss whers the coniractusl payresed @ more than 30 detpe past dae, the delnsk position o= b asazmean serase
n et i Howeser, defauk [evels m the past have been enmatenal end there were no fee recerables past doe as ok 31 March
08

Investmsents in subsidiaries
Invethnents v subsidurees are Sated m the parent oorp ey's balance sheet at ooet le any prossions for emparment

Mote 3 - Investment in Subsidiary
COMPANY

Ad 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2013 the Company had =n eredment of 1 In the cpinuon of the derectors, the Company’s
myestrrent 18 not srpated Details of the v estrert are az follows

Humber, class md
Coumiry of preroetage of shares
LEvestee Icorparation F 1 acth| Tueld by e Coevggamy
Canynian 1 Crdmany share
Hikdo AM (Cayrmun) Lid Tebmnds General pirinier i 81, 100k

Bote 4 — Taxatlon

AL3] Murch 2015 and 204 8, the Lios rale applicabile Lo thee Group and the Company's profits is 084 because there & no bax levied
an Cagrnan [Hands companse:
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HIEEK® AM GLOBAL CAYMANLTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 201%

Note § - Financial Risk Factors

The Grog ard Company"s [nancal instrurmesds compaite cath and cash sqavalents and recarsble and paypshle balsnoss that
wrzse from 25 duily opemtions  All cash and cash equimabents ie camied ot cost which iz conmdered b sy prommate bo fuir vaboe
duse 1o the short berm matursty of thess Bnancal nidruments The masm naos amociabed with the Grosp end Campany's fnancal
ity el labihilies are ool Caf bejow

Credit risk

Credit nisk &5 defined az She rigk of fmancaal loss due bo a counbaparty™s failurs lo honcur its chligatvon prencspally im relabion ko
ranmctions where the Geomp of Cosmpany prowides goods o services on deferred berens and where & svests or depoails nrplus
cazhi The Group o Comgpasy do rot behev e that they are mabenaBy aposad to aedit ndd & 1t sbes debbors ore manag od group
Bands ared therators managament e performancs fees recamable e govemed by i agreemesis with thee inds To rmtigate
oy rendual risk of these assels failng to be delmered, the Gram ond Company eraure Bh the terms of these sgresments in
relabion Lo payrenls of management and perforenancs fees are sdberad 1o by moralonry 12 aged deblor analyeiz agaiest the agreed
service level agresments

The Group ard Company adopts the palicy of delbing wilh asfomens of spprop nate aedit hetory. For ofher Erancal azests, the
Group wnd Company adopts epoley of dealing with financial mstduisons and otber comiberpetios with high cedtratings Thare
#re vy Frarcml esdts padt dus and ) or empared as ot 3T Manch 200 % and 2018 Trade recerssbles are due 8t least quacterly, and are
neemally seitled within 30 days of ther dus date There ase o ovendue wde recerrabbes at the balincs shest date

Further, with repant to bank depossts, the Group and Company only depomts money with spproved counberparises on agreed bamms

Market risk

Markcet rizke {or sysberrue 12k ae defined ax that riske whinch k2 ootnmon bo an enlre dase of assets of habalises whereby ther value
cm fluctuate simply becouse of economic changes of other ovents that smpact large portvons: of the market The Grogp and
Corpany do not belisre that they ars expesed to maberal madce rid: as B asses the Group and Company rarmgs ars hald by
ared foer the benefil of fiand holders Srough ssparate bagal entibies

Currency risk

Currency ndi it defined ag the s that the value of Group or Company azsetr and lisbaliees denomenatad o aurrencaes other than
the fupctinal currency of the Group or Company will change nvaiue dus to movenents o foregn enduenge rates The Group
ad Comrpany ae enpoced Lo aErency Rk Eding fom Ve ok ey snpoase, prirnanly with respect te the Japaness Yen
(TEE ), Sterlieg Peound (3BF) and Singapore Dollar (SO0 The Group and Company”s fee meome i rectw o mainly m USD and
JFY. AL 31 Maech 2009 and 2008, had these axrencees drengthenedfwesiomed by 10% againg the UED with all other vanables
mehahing tax rabe beng held constant, the Jrogp and Company’s profit befecs bax for the francial year would have bee
highserlower a5 a resalt of cusrency trenslabyon |osses/gaing on the remaingng carrency depominated cashbalences, raderecevables

ard pacibibis by the balow amounts
CUr ey p b mig
(Founded 1o rearest § thousand)
TFY H 54,000 5 000
3BF 35,000 6000
33D 56,000 145,000

Liquidity risk and fMnancial sobency risk

Liquidity rds 15 defined a5 the mid; that the Group or Comgany wall not be able to meet ds fmancil oblipations as they fall due
The Group iad Company’ s spproach o ranaging his nk o be saire that i has saffcerd haaddy to mest ibs Dsbiises when
dus, both undar nonral and dresed condibons

Capltal managemeni
The Group snd Comp ey capaal ponton 15 monrioeed on an ongosng basis bo arure thal & o sdequate There e no etamally
nposed caprtal requimements:

Falr Valie of Financial Tnstraments
The far valuss of fironcsd assets ared firsraal hatalfee: that e raded @ activs macksts are Bated on qucted marked prices o
dealer price quotations. For all other fnencial irsknemnts, the Group determanes By valoes using other vadustion technigaes

Fer firarcnl metnorments that treds mequently and have hitle price Sengarency, fur value s bess ghpedrre, and requores varying

degress of padpement depemding on Lquidity, soncentration, incertainty of rarkd fadors, prcug eaimptons and other nsks
affedmg the gpeafic nnument

The tableb show amalyses finarcul sotnanents, mibo o far value hisrarchy bassd on the vahaation techique used bo debermme fair
walus

& Level 10 quoled proces (nadpested) o sctive ek s foe idenfocal assets er lukilities

® Level 3 inputs other than quoted prices mchuded withm Level 1 that are chservable for the asset or lisbildy, either deectly
(1e, a8 prioes) or indredly {1 e, darmed from prices)

® Lavel 3 inputs for the aeset or lisbility that sre nothared on obpervable market data (e chaervable inputs)
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Year mded 31 March 20019 —Levell Level 2 Lol 3 Total 2019
R H H 2 -

Cash wnd cadh equiwalent 3938928 3938928
Acoaunts pecervable 3,190,108 3,190, 108
Acirisd inoorre and prepand eqpante 71250 1,250
Linbilities

Acmued oxpmiom and deferred meame 144,450 144, 4n
Actoands payable 124,271 124271
eriorlin i o g 2462,391 246,391
Year maded 31 March 2002 Lrvel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 2018
AiME 5 5 : 5

Caszh arid cash squewalent 2283 00 2283 iy
Aastoants pecevable 4,264 182 4,264,782
Ainaed mecdre and prepand apente 71250 . 71,250
LEbilities

Aeenssd sipmes and defermed moome B85 000 165,000
Acoounts payable W7 555 109, 533
acmnﬁ:rhlulnm 32300 36120

All fmancm)] assds and lmbahizes are cameed ot histon ol oost. The Faar values of all francu] esets and habilibes are ammler to
their carrymg valiEs owring bo thesr ghorl Leren natuee

Mote & - Helated Party Transaotons
Trarsadtions betwem the Group end Company and refated partses are dizcloged below

Debtor as Creditor as at
Crperating Cpr pating uk 31 March 31 March
Wenr ended 31 March 20019 Revenues Expenues (1) 2019 {b) FLLELTY]
Mdtko As=et Blanapement fomenices, Inc g = I 4,738 208 g - 1 130T
Mk Azset Banapienent Eunop e L4 247631 1,253,147
Hitko Arset Manapement Co, Lid = 2634320 . 300,671
Hicko Asset Banagament Ana Lid - 2oa8 - 45,065
Hitko Asset Managerent Hong Kong - 138,852 - 12733
Total 5 - 5 19056557 3 - 5 2A62,391
Debtor as Creditor &5 at
Crperating Operating at At March 3 March
¥enr mded 31 March 3008 Rrevemues Expenses (n) 2018 ib)
Hicko Aszel Manapement Americas, Ing 5 - 5 240 1 - 5 anam
Hicko Asset Bansgement Eurcp e Lid 2 10,865 491 i TR
Mo Aset Manapeenant Ca | Lid - 3az 120 - 21,120
Hicko Asset Managament Ana Lid - 0,050 - 204,310
Mo Ascét BManagement Hong Kong = 1722 = 1M
Total 5 - 5 IS366085 3 - 3 s
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NIKEKOQ AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3] MARCH 2019
() OCperating expenses pasd to related parbies wre pryable under myestment monagement agreements and are for Bund
mmﬁi:u‘l‘m

(b)) The srounts cutdanding sre nseared and will be settied i cash. Mo gusrantees bave boen prwen orreceived. No provisions
Faawe By e for deubifil dadbis onrespedt of the amounls oaved by relaled padaes

Hikkeo Astet Management Asnericas, Inc, Mikkeo Assst Management Europe Lid | Nicko Assét Managsment A<ia Ltd and Hicks
At Maragerant Hong Kong are fellow sibadisies. Hikko Azt Management Co., Lid b5 an indirect shareholder of the

aloparsntions sibadiaries

Mote 7 - Ultimate Holding Commpany
The Greasp o8 4 whielly owned subsdisry of Mildeo AM Olobal Holdangs Lid, de snrediate parend undadtalang, & cofparny widdh
lsr‘gi:t:u-dn England ed Wales

Ini the cpmnion of the directors She ulbmate parert company, and controllng party, 35 Samiome hitns Tl Heldngs, Inc,a
oorpany moarporsted m Japin Firamecial satements for Suritomo bitan Trast Holdngs, Ine are avaalable bo the pabhe froem
thelew etior Belabions Office, Financial Plinfueg Departent, Sumaborto basu Trud Heldmgs, Ine 1= |, Maninouda, Chiyeda-
Tou, Tokoyo 100-8233, Jagan Copies of the anniza] repoet can be viewad orretraeved from hisp Swww smih i

— Suhsequent Evenis

SBubpaqueent et staternent of fmincial postion dabe, Bere wene noevents whad bad an wrgac on She consaladatad and mdimdual
[eanieaal staberracts of Bus Commpany
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@
CIBC
CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
2019 40,170,884 43 3,002
CIBC 1965
2018
@
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
2018 12 985,000,000 1,061 7,315
(©))
UFJ PB
2019 80
(O]
2019 173 63
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®
LLC
Neuberger Berman Investment Advisers LLC)
2018 12 658,000,000 709 2,582
@
90
@
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)
®
UFJ PB
JSDA
JSDA
)
©)
SEC
)
Q)
LLC
LLC
2002 11 2003 SEC
2016 LLC
LLC NB LLC NB
LLC LLC
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1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.1

2.2

2.3

2019

2019

1993

3.1

3.2

*

CIMA

1993

2018

1960

10,916 2,930

2019

2018
CIMA

CIMA

CIMA
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3.3

(a
@G
i
(ii
(A
(B
(b (M (i)

(i)
CIMA

4.1

4.2 CIMA
(a
(b
(c
«
(e
2018

4.3

4.4 2006 12 27

CIMA

5.1

5.2

100,000

100,000

4,268

CIMA
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4,268
CIMA
CIMA
3,049
CIMA
CIMA
2018
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA



5.3
CIMA
5.4

) 2.3
5.5 CINA

(a
(b

(c
(d
(e
5.6 CIMA

5.7

5.8

CIMA

36,585
8,536

6.1
(a

O

(c

@

®

2018

CIMA

3.3

24,390
8,536

42,682
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3.2
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
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(e
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a

(m

(n
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(a

O

(c

(

(e

(f

(9

(h
@i

1925

20
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(a
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(c
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CIMA
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(@

(e

(f

(9

(h

@i

(k

2013

(i
(i

Gii

(iv

(v

50

CIMA

2017

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

CIMA

500

7.3

7.3

10

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA CIMA

10

CIMA

CIMA
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«
(e
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(a
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«
7.9

(a
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(c

(d
(e

7.7 CIMA

CIMA
CIMA

CIMA CIMA
7.7 CIMA

b)

7.10 CIMA 7.9 CIMA

7.14

7.15
(a
(b

(c

(a
(b

(c

()

(e

CIMA

7.9(d) 7.9(e)
CINA CINA

7.9(e)

7.13

7.9(d) 7.9(e)

CINA CINA CINA

CINA
CINA
7.15(b) CINA

7.9(d) 7.9(e) 7.15

CINA

7.15 CIMA

CIMA
94(4)

7.9(d) 7.9(e)
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(iv CINA
v CINA
(vi CINA

(viii  CIMA
(b CIMA
(c CIMA
(d CIMA
.10 8.8 CIMA
(a
(b
(c
(d
(e
.11 CIMA 8.10 CIMA

.12 8.10(d) 8.10(e)
CINA CINA
.13 8.10(e)

8.14  8.13
8.15  8.10(d) 8.10(e)

(a CINA CINA
@ CIMA

(c 8.15(b)

.16 8.10(d) 8.10(e)
(a 8.15
¢
CINA
.17 8.15
(a CINA
@ 94(4)
(c CINA 8.10(d) 8.10(e)

.18 CIMA 8.16 CIMA

.19 CIMA CIMA

(a

(b
.20

.21
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CIMA CIMA CIMA
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11.2

11.3 1996
(a 14(1)

14(2)

O

11.4
(a

@i
(i
¢

(c

@

(e

11.5

(a

(b

11.6

12
12.1 2019 257
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12.2 2019 247 248

(a

(b

(c

13
13.1
2008
13.2
13.3
CIMA
13.4
6.1(D 6.2(9)

6.3(i)
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Report of Independent Auditors

To CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as the Trustee of NEUB Corporate Hybrid

Securities Fund

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NEUB Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund (the “ Fund” ),
which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the portfolio of investments, as of February
28, 2019, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, and of cash flows and the financial
highlights for the year then ended. These financial statements and financial highlights are hereafter

collectively referred to as “ financial statements”

Management’ s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Fund’ s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’ s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of NEUB Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund as of February 28, 2019, and the results of its
operations, changes in its net assets, and its cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended,
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

June 28, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT TO THE DIRECTORS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory accounts of Nikko AM Global Cayman Ltd (the “ Company” ) for the year ended 31
March 2019 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and the Company Statement of Financial
Position as at 31 March 2019, the Statement of Consolidated Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity, and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and related notes including
the accounting policies in note 2. The non-statutory accounts have been prepared for the reasons set out in note
1.

In our opinion the non-statutory accounts:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’ s affairs as at 31 March 2019 and of its profit for
the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (* ISAs (UK)” ) and the terms

of our engagement letter dated 3 May 2019. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and

appropriate basis for our opinion.

The impact of uncertainties due to the UK exiting the European Union on our audit

Uncertainties related to the effects of Brexit are relevant to understanding our audit of the financial
statements. All audits assess and challenge the reasonableness of estimates made by the directors and related
disclosures and the appropriateness of the going concern basis of preparation of the financial statements. All of
these depend on assessments of the future economic environment and the company®s future prospects and
performance.

Brexit is one of the most significant economic events for the UK, and at the date of this report its effects are
subject to unprecedented levels of uncertainty of outcomes, with the full range of possible effects unknown. We
applied a standardised firm-wide approach in response to that uncertainty when assessing the company®s future
prospects and performance. However, no audit should be expected to predict the unknowable factors or all possible
future implications for a company and this is particularly the case in relation to Brexit.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the non-statutory accounts on the going concern basis as they do not intend to
liquidate the group or to cease their operations, and as they have concluded that the group and the company®s
financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material
uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over their ability to continue as a going concern for at
least a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory accounts (“ the going concern period” ).

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is
inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of
that basis for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory accounts. In our
evaluation of the directors® conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the group®s business model,
including the impact of Brexit, and analysed how those risks might affect the group and company®s financial
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resources or ability to continue operations over the going concern period. We have nothing to report in these

respects.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes
that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of reference
to a material uncertainty in this auditor®s report is not a guarantee that the group will continue in operation.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the director®s report. Our opinion on
the non-statutory accounts does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our non-
statutory accounts or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work, we have not identified material
misstatements in the other information.

Directors” responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the non-statutory accounts, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory accounts that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the company’ s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory accounts as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’ s report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the non-statutory accounts.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC' s website at
ww . Frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It has been
released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole
(save for the Company’ s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior written consent.

Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company’ s needs at the
time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any party wishing to
acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the
Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to rely on our report (or any part of it) will do
so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability
in respect of our report to any other party.
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Michael McGarry (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London E14 5GL

2 August 2019
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Report of Independent Auditors

To CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as the Trustee of NEUB Corporate Hybrid

Securities Fund

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NEUB Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund (the “ Fund” ),
which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the portfolio of investments as of February 28,
2018, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, and of cash flows and the financial
highlights for the period from February 22, 2017 (commencement of operations) through February 28, 2018. These
financial statements and financial highlights are hereafter collectively referred to as “ financial statements”

Management’ s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Fund’ s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’ s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of NEUB Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund as of February 28, 2018, and the results of its
operations, changes in its net assets, and its cash flows and the financial highlights for the period from
February 22, 2017 (commencement of operations) through February 28, 2018, in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

July 20, 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT TO THE DIRECTORS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory accounts of Nikko AM Global Cayman Ltd (“ the company” ) for the year
ended 31 March 2018 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and the Company
Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2018, the Statement of Consolidated Comprehensive Income,
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year
then ended, and related notes including the summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion the non-statutory accounts:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’ s affairs as at 31 March 2018 and of its loss
for the year then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ ISAs (UK)” ) and
the terms of our engagement letter dated 2 May 2018. Our responsibilities are described below. We have
fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the company in accordance with, UK
ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of
accounting is inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant
doubt over the use of that basis for a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the
non-statutory accounts. We have nothing to report in these respects.

Directors”™ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the
preparation of the non-statutory accounts, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such
internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory accounts that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the company’ s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory accounts as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an
auditor’ s report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it

exists.  Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of the non-statutory accounts.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC' s website at
www._frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It
has been released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or
disclosed, in whole (save for the Company’ s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior
written consent.

Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company’ s
needs at the time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by
any party wishing to acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any

context. Any party other than the Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to
rely on our report (or any part of it) will do so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by
law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of our report to any other party.

Michael McGarry (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London E14 5GL

25 July 2018
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